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Club Office Bearers 2020 -2021
PATRONS
James Griffin MP, Jean Hay AM, David Hay,  
Des McAteer

DIRECTORS
President Christine Gibbs Stewart

Deputy President Jack Sutherland

Secretary Frank Traugott
Assistant Cath Hillier (until 1 January 2021)

Treasurer Tonino Falzarano
Assistant George van Dyck

Club Captain Daniel Hillier
Assistant Jack Watt

Chief Instructor Trae Hare-Boyd
Assistant Hanna Clare

Competition Sarah Lally
Assistant Deb Foote

Marketing David Cowell
Assistant Alex Salier

Junior Activities Brian Mariotti
Assistant Hillary Burrows

Youth Jodie Frazer
Assistant Jo Cooper

General Activities Claire Oxlade
Assistant Janice Faaolatane

OFFICERS, PANELS AND COMMITTEES
Member Protection Information Officer 
Janice Faaolatane

Executive Officer 
Paul Mathew

Public Officer 
Christine Gibbs Stewart

Honorary Auditor 
Trevor Lane 

Honorary Legal Advisor 
Vacant

Honorary Trustees
Keith Crampton, Paul Day, Arthur McCarroll

Life Membership & Honours Panel  
Shannon Job, Paul Day, Ron Morton, Arthur 
McCarroll

Judiciary Panel
Adam Traugott, Keith Abraham, Gordon Lang

Rules Panel 
Adam Traugott, Gordon Lang,  
Damian O’Shannassy

Future Fund Committee
Tonino Falzarano, Paul Day, Tim Platt, Bernie 
Burrows

Club Historian  Simon Fry

Administration Manager
Audrey Bruen (until 18 December 2020)
Cath Hillier (from 4 January 2021)

LIFE MEMBERS
K Abraham 2016
WH Allison 1922*
W Anderson 1952*
JF Buckley 1955*
BW Burrows 1996
A Carter 1936*
K Crampton 1986
J Colwell 2012
FH Dargan 1930*
PA Day 1975
LA Ellison 1926*
HC ‘Rastus’ Evans 1932*
WC Farran 1921*
AF Fitzgerald MBE 1958*
S Fry 2011
R Geary 1950*
S Grose 2008
TG Harland 1965*
NW Higham 1957*
LV Hind 1920*
P Hull 1998
T Lane 2018
Col. DH Love 1919*
AJ McCarroll 1983
DJ McGrath 1948*
P Mathew 2011
OGH Merrett 1913*
RC Middleton 1922*
GA Millar 1953*
EG Morgan 1951*

GH Morgan 1941*
ED Morton 1928*
R Morton 2013
DA O’Shannassy 2001
GB O’Sullivan 2003
AH Own 1938*
CK Paton 1947*
CD Patterson 1911*
NR Purcell 1971*
JB Pym 1915*
DH Richardson 1945*
DK Robinson 1957*
AV Robinson 1938*
NJB Roelvink 1996
H Rogers 1965*
EVM Shemwell 1912*
CG Soutar 1940*
GR Soutar 1943*
P St John 2009
C Stanford 2010
J Sutherland 2008
SAR Tuck 1942*
S Tocchini 1963*
RT Walden QPM 1944*
WH Walter 1921*
C Walton 1968*
JJ Waterer 1924*
GR Webb 1953*
CW Whitehead 1923*
EW Whitehead 1931*
*Deceased

                   Vale
Jason Grose
It is with sadness we acknowledge the passing of 
Jason Grose, brother to Shan, Ray and Nikki, brother-
in-law to Jack Ryan, uncle to Ebony, Chanelle and 
Elley. Shan is a former President, Ray is a current 
member and Ebony and Chanelle former members of 
North Steyne SLSC.

Iris Crampton
Beloved Wife of Keith, Life Member
Iris was involved in many special days at the Club in 
the 1950’s and 60’s as part of the Women’s Auxillary 
Committee organising gala events.  Keith and Iris 
were married for over 60 years.

Sincere sympathy is extended to all our members and 
their families who have suffered loss of loved ones 

throughout the past year.
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DISTINGUISHED SERVICE
1982 S Ryan, R Higgins, B Anderson*, D Gordon*
1983 C Walton*, T Wise, CF Ashworth, M Gamlin*
1984 C Fry
1985 I Vickery*
1986 L Walker
1989 A McCarroll
1999 C Ryan, S Grose, G O’Sullivan, T Lane
2000 D O’Shannassy
2001 W Crampton, I Donald, J Fryer*
2005 HF Cranfield*, P Mathew, J Sutherland, T Howard
2007 KE Abraham, C Stanford, P St John, H Kernaghan, R Morton
2008 J Colwell, C Dooley, C Rath, M Keogh, L Cooper, T Platt, J Hay AM
2009 B Cronly
2010 M Peacock-Smith, M Neighbour
2012 R Birch
2013 D Foote, S Job
2014 G Cooper, H Matheson, J Mastrangelo, F Traugott, L Chalenor
2015 R Donaldson
2016 T Hare-Boyd
2017 D O’Brien, P Landsey, A Salier
2018 D Cowell
2019 C Stewart
2020 J Cooper, D Hillier
*Deceased

FEES 2020-2021

Member category		  Annual fee
Active Senior			   $90
Active Reserve			   $90
Long Service			   $90
Past Active				    $90
Distinguished Service		  $45
Outstanding Service			  $45
Student				    $60
Active Junior and Cadet		  $60
General				    $90
Nipper				    $100
Family (3-4)				   $250
Family (5+)				    $310

OUTSTANDING SERVICE
2009 G Cooper
2010 S Job, D Foote, A Traugott
2011 F Traugott
2012 T Hare-Boyd, R Humphrey, J Cooper
2014 P Friedman, T Rankine
2016 D Cowell
2017 T Falzarano, R Chapman, J Purvis
2018 J Frazer, M Maddox, M Stewart, C Stewart
2019 B Patrick, K Jenkins 
2020 D Edwards

LONG SERVICE AWARDS
70 Years Keith Crampton
60 Years Keith Abraham
50 Years Colin Stanford
50 Years Simon Fry
25 Years Malcolm Peake
25 Years Jonathan Colwell
25 Years Paul Mathew
25 Years Shan Grose

PATROL SERVICE AWARDS
20 Years Shannon Job
10 Years Daniel Hillier
10 Years Jodie Frazer
5 Years Riana Takeda
5 Years Abbey Hillier
5 Years Rose Richardson
5 Years Joseph Jenkins
5 Years Olivia Kehoe
5 Years Maya Walton
5 Years Brian Mariotti
5 Years Rachel Kinghorn
5 Years James Townsend
5 Years Bruce Mansfield

OFFICIATING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
20 Years Chris Dooley
15 Years Keith Abraham
10 Years Shannon Job
10 Years Joe Mastrangelo
10 Years Tim Lawrence 

ASSESSING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
10 Years Joe Mastrangelo
10 Years Tracey Hare-Boyd
10 Years Frank Traugott

TRAINING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
10 Years Richard Donaldson

COACHING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
10 Years David Maguire
10 Years Richard Donaldson



North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 114th Annual Report | Page 4

Club Achievements 2020-2021 

Our Charitable Purpose 

NSSLSC is a charitable community based service organisation. NSSLSC is located within the 
Sydney Northern Beaches branch of Surf Life Saving New South Wales and Surf Life Saving 
Australia.  

NSSLSC is established for the Objects to: 

a. study, teach, promulgate and practice the methods of surf lifesaving; 

b. minimise loss of life and injury by providing surf lifesaving patrols and equipment for the purpose 
of rescues, resuscitation and first aid; 

c. foster, promote and encourage community service and sporting competition through surf 
lifesaving; 

d. conduct carnivals, competitions and social functions for the benefit of NSSLSC; 

e. pursue and manage funds to promote these Objects including sponsorship, fundraising, 
investments and marketing opportunities;

f. promote applicable national, state, branch and NSSLSC standards, policies, procedures and 
techniques for aquatic safety and lifesaving; 

g. act at all times in the interests of its members and surf lifesaving; and 

h. carry on any activity, whether directly or indirectly, which aims to enhance the interests of its 
members and surf lifesaving. 

•	 No lives lost whilst on patrol for the 114th year in a row.

•	 Membership held steady despite COVID-19.

•	 Increase in Nipper membership.

•	 32 new bronze medallions awarded.

•	 Hosted 3 highly successful carnivals on North Steyne beach - Nippers’ Water Carnival in 
November, the Australia Day Boat Carnival in January and the Sydney Northern Beaches 
Branch Beach Carnival in February.

•	 Represented at branch, state and Australian surf lifesaving championships in lifesaving events 
and surf boats.

•	 Open Patrol Competition Team awarded bronze at NSW Surf Lifesaving Championships at 
Swansea-Belmont.

•	 Shannon Job awarded gold in Champion Lifesaver (Male 30-39 yrs) at branch, state and 
“Aussies”.

•	 Caroline Yarnell awarded silver 1km beach run (Female 60-64 yrs) at “Aussies”.

•	 Provided emergency services support for flood rescue during wild storms in March.

•	 Provided water safety for 20/Twenty Cerebral Palsy Alliance annual swim and course marshals 
for Sun Herald Fun Run.

•	 Conducted strategic planning workshops to map future direction for the club.
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President’s Foreward
Season 2020-2021 had a “can do” theme in which 
the spirit and determination of North Steyne was 
at its best. In the face of constant uncertainty, our 
members really pulled together, and we had very 
dedicated patrols, hosted a number of carnivals 
and moved forward in a number of key strategic 
areas for the Club. 

In our 114th season, we can proudly say that 
once again no lives were lost on North Steyne 
Beach whilst on patrol. This is because of our 
exceptional surf lifesavers, great patrol captains, 
our outstanding trainers and a focus on teamwork.

Our membership numbers held steady this season 
with a healthy increase in our Nippers. Thank you 
to all our members who returned to the Club and 
we welcomed 32 new Bronze Medallion holders 
and 25 SRCs to our patrols over the season.    

Looming large in the background all season was 
COVID-19. Like all other surf lifesaving clubs, we 
put extra precautions in place, occasionally needed 
to close our clubhouse, and we worked diligently to 
keep our safety plans up to date. Sadly, COVID-19 
caused the cancellation or postponement of some 
of our key events including our 2019-2020 end 
of season presentation (delivered online through 
Club website), Christmas party (cancelled) and 
AGM (postponed). By very bad luck, our 2021 
presentation night had to be also postponed, 
but fortunately, we were able to reschedule this. 
Thanks to all our members for your patience and 
understanding as we navigated our new COVID 
world. 

To start the season, but also conclude our last one, 
our AGM was held on 12th September 2020 at the 
Club. It was a bit subdued with only 30 people 
allowed to attend. Nevertheless, it was great to get 
together and reflect on all our achievements and 
talk about our future plans.

At the AGM, we welcomed back a very experienced 
team to the Board with Jack Sutherland as 
Deputy President, Tony Falzarano as Treasurer, 
Dan Hillier as Club Captain, Jack Watt as Vice- 
Captain, Trae Hare-Boyd as Chief Instructor, 
Brian Mariotti as Nipper’s Director, Hillary Burrows 
as Assistant Nipper’s Director, David Cowell as 
Marketing Director, Jodie Fraser as Youth Director 
and Claire Oxlade as General Activities Director.  
Sarah Lally stepped up to be Competition Director 
and Frank Traugott, our former President, returned 
as Secretary. 

We also welcomed a number of new assistants 
to the Board with Hanna Clare to Education, Jo 
Cooper to Youth, Alex Salier to Marketing, Janice 
Faaolatane to General Activities and Deb Foote  
to Competition. With this fantastic team, we were 
all ready for the season and were looking forward 

to a very busy summer 
ahead.

Stepping down from our 
Board was Tracey Hare-
Boyd. It was fantastic 
that she took on her new 
role as the first female 
President of Sydney 
Northern Beaches 
Branch. We are very proud of Tracey and all she 
has done for the surf lifesaving movement.

We started the season on a high when we won 
3 awards at the Surf Life Saving New South 
Wales Awards of Excellence which were held 
virtually. Congratulations to Trae Hare-Boyd for 
being awarded Young Volunteer of the Year, Joe 
Mastrangelo for Assessor of the Year and to the 
North Steyne team for winning the Community 
Education Award for our Gaza Surf Life Saving 
project. An amazing achievement and a great way 
to roll into the new season.

During the season we hosted three carnivals on 
North Steyne Beach. This is always a big effort for 
our Club and to have 3 in one season was really 
going above and beyond for our volunteers and 
strongly reflects our “can do” spirit. Under the 
guiding hand of Sarah Lally, we staged a Nippers’ 
Water Carnival in November, the Australia Day 
Boat Carnival in January and the Sydney North 
Beaches Branch Beach Carnival in February. All 
three carnivals were very successful and it was 
great seeing so much black and gold on our own 
beach.

Our competitors came out in force this season and 
we saw our training sessions greatly increase in 
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both frequency and number of participants. Our 
Nippers did very well in carnivals and we had the 
largest contingent attend the NSW Junior State 
Championships that we have had in many years. 
Not only was North Steyne well represented, but 
we brought home a number of medals and top 10 
placings. 

Our Opens, Masters and Boats also had a great 
season. Our Champion Lifesaver competitors 
blitzed the Sydney North Beaches Branch 
competition with a record haul of gold medals won. 
Our success continued at the NSW and Australian 
Championship. A special congratulations goes 
to Shannon Job who took home the gold in the 
30-39 yrs Male Champion Lifesaver. Another big 
congratulations also goes to Caroline Yarnell who 
brought home silver at Aussies in the 60-64 yrs 
Women 1km beach run. There were many other 
great placings which resulted in a fantastic result 
for North Steyne!

Our Boats really picked up pace with some new 
crews, particularly in the younger age groups. 
Thanks to our dedicated sweeps and to all our 
Boaties for being such a great part of our Club and 
lending an extra hand with other activities. 

Behind the scenes we were busy working on the 
masterplan for our clubhouse. After a presentation 
at the AGM, we undertook more consultations 
and submitted a re-worked plan to the Northern 
Beaches Council in March. Further, while people 
were busy on the beach, a number of us were 
busy thinking about our future. We held several 
meetings and have commenced putting in place 
a strategy and defining our goals to 2025. What is 
clear is that we have many strengths we can build 
on to make us a stronger Club in the future. We 
also have many smart and passionate people that 
can help get us there.

Away from our beach, we assisted with flood 
rescue efforts during the wild weather in March.  
A special thanks to Jack Watt and team who 
volunteered as part of our emergency services 
obligations. We also had over 80 volunteers assist 
with the Sun Herald Sun Run, and we provided an 
IRB crew and lifesavers for the Cerebral Palsy 20 
Twenty Fundraising event.   

This season we also farewelled our Office Manager 
Audrey Bruen. For eight years, Audrey ensured the 
smooth running of the Club and we thank her for 
her dedication and the great work she provided. 
Cath Hillier has stepped into this role and she has 
made a number of improvements already. We are 
very lucky to have Cath in this role. 

To our key sponsors and supporters the Balgowlah 
RSL, Manly Lions and Ned Australian Whiskey, our 
new Boaties sponsor, our Patrons James Griffin, 
David Hay and Jean Hay AM, Des McAteer, our 
members, and to all my fellow North Steyne 
Directors, thank you for your great support and 
outstanding contribution. Our can-do attitude once 
again has put us head and shoulders above the 
rest and we continue our proud tradition of serving 
the community on North Steyne beach.  

Chris Gibbs Stewart 
President
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Deputy President’s Report
I was especially pleased to 
be present at the launching 
of the new IRB which 
was named in honour of 
Richard Donaldson. Given 
all that Richard has done 
and continues to do for the 
IRB section it was a fitting 
honour.

It was unfortunate that our annual ocean swim, our 
major fundraiser and marquee public community 
event, was cancelled for the second year in a row 
because of COVID-19.

Our BBQ’s are an important source of revenue for 
the club. They too were disrupted because of the 
pandemic but when we were able to open it was 
good to see my old mates from the A team back 
together, doing what they do best to support the 
club. Thanks to our leader Keith Crampton and 
the rest of my A team buddies Ron Morton, David 
O’Brien, Jim Kernaghan and Ray Grose. Our “A 
minus team” was also active on the BBQ. It was 
good to see them around the club. Thanks to 
Trevor Lane, Rick Higgins, Lex Tall, Bill Minnett, 
George Paton, John Land, Geoff Kirby and Gary 
Headland. 

Last year I said that I would like to see more 
teams of this kind come together and it looks like 
it’s happening. Arthur McCarroll has put his hand 
up to form a third senior BBQ team. They will be 
called “Triple A”  (because they’re full of energy just 
like the battery). I would also like to acknowledge 
the General Activities team of Claire and Janice 
for all their hard work this season. Claire puts in a 
considerable number of hours, not just to support 
the BBQ but also to help organise social and other 
functions such as presentation nights for the club.

It is a pleasure to work with someone as talented 
and committed as our President, Chris Stewart. 
We always seem to be on the same page. We 
have similar views and level of urgency on what 
can be done to save our club building from further 
deterioration. Sadly, it has been neglected for 
a considerable period of time. It is disappointing 
when things are promised but not delivered.

Congratulations and thanks to all members of 
the North Steyne SLSC for your contribution this 
season. Thank you also for continuing our proud 
legacy of “no lives lost” in 114 years on North 
Steyne beach whilst our surf lifesavers have been 
on patrol.

I look forward to seeing you on the beach and 
around the club next season.  
Jack Sutherland 
Deputy President & Life Member

It was an unusual but good season. Whilst there 
was considerable disruption due to covid19, club 
members worked together when needed to pull 
off some impressive accomplishments during the 
season. Despite considerable obstacles North 
Steyne’s attitude of “we can do” was on display 
for all to see. That attitude turned what would have 
been an ordinary season into a good season.

We have a long history of “we can do” within the 
club, often with limited resources and significant 
challenges. We have had success with running 
some large carnivals and pioneering surf lifesaving 
activities in other parts of the world. North Steyne 
has hosted the Australian SLS Championships 
in the early 1900’s, the Queen Mother’s SLS 
carnival in 1958, trained lifesavers and conducted  
lifesaving patrols on the island of Jersey in the 
1950’s and 60’s. We also trained Palestinian 
lifesavers at North Steyne in 2019 to help them 
establish a lifesaving capability on Gaza Beach in 
Palestine.  There is an energy that surrounds this 
club when we run or are asked to be involved with 
these types of events.

One of the highlights for me this season was 
hosting the surf boat carnival as part of the 
Australia Day weekend. Surf boat racing has 
special significance in our history, we are the only 
club to have won eight Australian open surf boat 
titles. It was great to have the surf boats competing 
on our stretch of beach to honour that legacy. It 
was also good to see our member crews compete 
as well contribute, along with other hard working 
members of our club, to make that carnival an 
outstanding success.

Another highlight this season was the successful 
running of the water Nipper’s carnival. Thanks 
to the Nipper section for their involvement. 
Special mention to Sarah Lally who stepped up 
to be Competition Director this season and did a 
fantastic job leading all our carnival efforts. It is 
also always good to see our “ripper nippers” on our 
beach under the tireless direction of David Cowell.
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Secretary’s Report
It is often said that no two seasons in a surf club 
are the same. No matter how well you plan things 
the next season never turns out the way you 
expect. There is always something that surprises 
you. That was particularly true of this past season.

With the early closure of the previous season due to 
the COVID-19 global pandemic we had no way of 
predicting what was going to happen this season. 
But we did know that it would be interrupted and 
uncertain. It was!

There were some big changes and increased 
demand on administration this season. After the 
2020 AGM I returned to the Board as Secretary, 
Cath Hillier moved to Assistant Secretary and 
Audrey Bruen continued as Administration 
Manager. “Team Admin” also supported Hillary 
Burrows with registration and administration 
for Nippers and supported Tony Falzarano with 
financial management, payments, Xero and online 
business banking practices.

Cath continued  on the COVID-19 committee with 
Chris Stewart, Dan Hillier, Paul Mathew and myself. 
This was a complex and constantly changing new 
agenda that required leadership, urgent action, 
well written policies, clear communication and 
meticulous implementation.

Whilst there was expert direction provided by NSW 
health advisors and the NSW Government as well 
as surf lifesaving affiliated bodies, this new agenda 
and response had to be developed within the club 
at short notice without any history or experience. 
It was a huge health risk that required immediate 
response. It  literally, at times, stopped us in our 
tracks.

It was a mammoth and complex task that required 
brave decisions and persistent insistence on 
compliance. Our COVID committee did an 
extraordinary job in managing and implementing 
that effort. Tracey Hare-Boyd, our branch President 
and valued North Steyne club member, was also 
instrumental in her branch leadership role with 
assisting Sydney Northern Beaches clubs navigate 
through the pandemic.

The first challenge for the North Steyne directors 
became evident at the first Board meeting in 
September 2020. Chris Stewart, in opening, 
provided the following wise words

 “there will be challenges ahead as processes are 
still uncertain, but we all need to remain vigilant 
and no one is alone here, we are all in this together 
and decisions are to be made together”.

As matters turned to business we wondered 
whether we would have any members? Could 

we run any events? What 
would we likely have to 
cancel? Will we have to 
shut down the club? How 
would our financials be 
affected? Expectations 
were low. As a membership 
based organisation we 
were concerned about our 
membership; the numbers as well as their health 
and safety.

What the club achieved this season is well beyond 
those expectations. Membership remained steady 
despite the loss of Riverview and Redlands 
because of COVID-19. That is an exceptional 
result. Credit must be given to Hillary Burrows and 
Brian Mariotti for expanding Nippers and engaging 
Nipper parent involvement.

Given we were all told, at various times, by the 
NSW Government to “stay at home” our next 
challenge was to work out how we could run 
the club. The answer was very apparent given 
that a considerable part of the world had shifted 
from “face to face” to “zoom” meetings. During 
the season we ran nine Board meetings. Four 
were “face to face” only, four were combination 
meetings of “face to face” and “zoom”, and one 
was “zoom only”. The four combination meetings 
were run to allow greater flexibility for Board 
members at a time when people were not strictly 
required to “stay at home”. That practice became 
the new normal. Generally, attendance at Board 
meetings by Directors was good, especially given 
COVID-19.

Directors Board attendance 
Maximum = 9

Chris Gibbs Stewart 9
Jack Sutherland 8
Frank Traugott 9
Tony Falzarano 7
Dan Hillier 9
Trae Hare-Boyd 2
Sarah Lally 7
Brian Mariotti 8
Jodie Frazer 8
David Cowell 5
Claire Oxlade 8

As the season progressed there were always 
issues for administration concerning member 
access, security, compliance and updating COVID 
safety plans as the restrictions were tightened or 
eased. None of these would have occurred in any 
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non-pandemic season. They added considerable 
load to the club’s administration.

One pleasing thing that occurred this season was 
the historical project by SLSA to provide a framed 
numbered cap to all SLSA life members or their 
families to honour their contribution. Unfortunately, 
the luncheon that was to be held to present those 
framed numbered caps to life members was 
cancelled due to restrictions. Instead they were 
sent to the club. 

Of more than 293 life members of SLSA, 41 of 
whom were from Sydney Northern Beaches, North 
Steyne proudly has had six SLSA life members. 
Only Freshwater has had more SLSA life members 
than North Steyne from Sydney Northern Beaches 
clubs. We honour their legacy.

SLSA North Steyne member Year awarded
14 Frank Dargan 1938/39
15 Cyril Whitehead 1938/40
32 George Millar 1944/45
34 George Webb 1944/45

125 Allen Fitzgerald MBE 1974/75
212 Neil Purcell OAM 2001/02

In late October there was an “east coast low” with 
big seas, gusting winds and high tides. The good 
news was that the tide only came to within 15 
metres of the club and there was the usual leaks 
coming through the ceiling. Otherwise, no water 
entered the club. In November the ceiling in the 
clubroom was replaced and the room repainted.

On 3rd and 17th February our President ran 
Strategic Planning workshops. It was great to 
see these sessions well attended by directors, 
seasoned and new members. There was a lot 
of energy and good ideas. I look forward to the 
outcome of these workshops which is still a work 
in progress.

In May we were saddened to learn of the bombings 
in Gaza. It was less than 12 months since North 
Steyne won the branch Community Education 
Program of the Year for the Gaza Surf Lifesaving 
Project. Our thoughts immediately turned to the 
safety and welfare of Mo and Hasan and their 
families. It is difficult to see how people in Gaza 
can enjoy the beach in a safe environment any 
time soon. It is also a reminder of how fortunate 
we are at North Steyne.

On a positive note, I was especially pleased to 
be Secretary to support Chris Stewart and all 
directors. It was an opportunity to return the loyalty 
and support Chris gave me, with our roles now 
reversed. It was also pleasing to see how she 
was managing as President with some especially 
challenging issues this season.

Succession planning and finding the best leaders 
is critical to any organisation. You know your job 
is done when you find a person that is willing and 
more than capable of filling your role. Chris is very 
capable and doing a good job. We need to support 
our President for North Steyne to succeed.

Particular thanks to Cath who has changed roles 
and done a considerable amount of “heavy lifting” 
in administration this season. Thanks Cath for your 
efforts. It has not been easy.

I am looking forward to next season. No doubt 
there will be new and big challenges ahead!

Frank Traugott 
Secretary

 

 ‘1953 March Past Suit’  owned by 
John Allen NSSLC Member since 1949

LifeSaver, Boat Captain,  
Treasurer and T J Stephens Trophy Winner

Donated by his ten Grandchildren in 2021 for 
John’s 92nd birthday.
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EDUCATION
Education is a key element in training members for 
any organisation. To remain proficient, lifesavers 
have to continuously update their skills against 
modern standards. Training requires a significant 
commitment of time for new candidates, trainers, 
and assessors.

Education this season was particularly challenging. 
There were new manuals, online materials, and 
guidelines for completely revised bronze & SRC 
courses. When the pandemic hit, much of that 
had to be re-worked at short notice to deliver 
and assess bronze & SRC training in a safe and 
different COVID safe way. At the beginning of this 
season, with lockdown, we did not know what 
courses were feasible or whether we had any 
candidates. It is a testament to the commitment 
of our candidates, trainers, and assessors that we 
were able to achieve what we did. Congratulations 
and thank you!

Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC)
Twenty-five members completed their SRC. 
Undertaken by U14 members this award marks a 
transition from nippers to the senior club through 
cadets. There were challenges. Water safety came 
under close scrutiny and our policies and practices 
needed review. Despite this it was impressive to 
watch our candidates grow in confidence and skill 
in surf conditions that, at times, were challenging. 
Teamwork was also evident when our U14s 
supported their fellow candidates with completing 
tasks. After their assessment our new SRCs were 
rostered and became contributing members of 
active patrols.

Congratulations to all our SRC’s  and  thank 
you to their supportive parents, the COVID-19 
Marshalls, the U14 age managers, Jodie 
Fraser, Jo Cooper, Brian Mariotti, Kyra 
Jenkins, Deb Foote, Frank Traugott and 
importantly all the water safety that helped out. 

Bronze Medallion
There were 32 members whom achieved their 
bronze medallion this season. Amongst them were 

SRCs training up, nipper parents increasing their 
engagement and new members. Congratulations 
and thank you all for your energy, commitment and 
most importantly, choosing North Steyne as your 
home for all things surf lifesaving.

The first bronze training group was trained by 
Tracey Hare-Boyd, Trae Hare-Boyd with the 
support of Hanna Clare. Members included nipper 
mums, SRC’s training up and new adult members. 
Their assessment at Queenscliff was in particularly 
big and challenging surf with a large shore dump, 
a lot of sideways water movement and rips testing 
their new skills. Several members in this group 
went on to attend club board training, compete for 
the club and help with water safety for nippers and 
patrolled for the rest of the season.

The second group included nipper dads, SRC’s 
training up, new members of mixed ages. It was 
trained by Kyra Jenkins with the support of Frank 
Traugott and two new probationary trainers in Dan 
Hillier and Lachlan van der Pluijm. They faced a 
few “big surf days” to practise their newly acquired 
board skills. It was especially pleasing to see, 
perhaps the least confident board paddler, crack 
a “monster wave out the back” and ride it all the 
way to the shore with a huge smile on his face. 
All the new “bronzies” were positive, fun and “can 
do” people. They are a tremendous asset to North 
Steyne. Dan Hillier and Lachlan Van der Pluijm 
went on to complete their Training Officer award 
after the season had finished. Well done Dan and 
Lochie!

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques (ART)
ART is one of the most challenging awards. It builds 
heavily upon the bronze medallion. It requires a 
high degree of skill, competency and teamwork. 
Members with this award are usually the leaders 
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in any resuscitation required on the beach. This 
season an updated ART manual and course was 
introduced. It was ably trained by some of the best 
trainers in the branch, Tracey Hare-Boyd, Trae 
Hare-Boyd, Kerrie Seppielt (Queenscliff)  and 
Hanna Clare. Congratulations to the 14 members 
who completed this award and thanks to their 
trainers.

First Aid
Performing first aid is a major component of our 
patrols, and first aid courses provide a higher 
level of skill and training for patrolling members. 
There were two courses run by Jamie Twight from 
Accidental Education. His decades of experience 
as a paramedic put a new slant on “first aid” training 
with lots of experiences shared from his paramedic 
career. Congratulations to the 29 members who 
completed this course and to Jamie for his expert 
training.

IRB Awards
Inflatable Rescue Boats (IRB) are the centrepiece 
equipment used in rescue in modern surf 
lifesaving. They require advanced skill to be able 
to operate in surf. They can be dangerous if not 
handled properly. Throughout IRB Crew training, 
candidates learn to crew the IRB in a range of surf 
conditions and assist in rescues within and beyond 
the break and general surveillance. This season 
we had 14 candidates complete the course under 
the expert guidance and tutelage of our own IRB 
assessor/ trainer Richard Donaldson and trainer 
David Guthrie. Congratulations to all our new 
IRB crew. Thank you Richard and David, your 
continued commitment and support is appreciated.

Beach Management
The Beach Management award equips lifesavers 
to efficiently run a patrol and manage any incidents 
that may arise during patrol. The skills gained 
through this award are essential for the efficient 
running of each of our 14 North Steyne patrols. 
North Steyne had seven members complete their 
Beach Management award this season. 

Proficiencies
Proficiencies are always a logistical challenge at 
the beginning of every season, with COVIDsafe 
protocols to meet, it was even more so this year. 
There was the usual rush of trying to get our 

members proficient and into Surfguard before 
31st December cut-off and the added problem of 
COVID-19 lockdowns for Sydney Northern Beaches 
just before Christmas made this impossible. This 
lead to some leniency from our peak state body. 
Thank you to all the people involved in conducting 
proficiencies – Hanna Clare, Kyra Jenkins, Tracey 
Hare-Boyd, Frank Traugott, Dan Hillier, Jack Watt, 
Shannon Job.

Compliance and Gear Inspection
As with every season, our education and training 
leaders attended gear inspection. During the sea-
son our patrols were subject to several audits.

Trainers and Assessors 
Our assessors and trainers are the backbone of 
our education team. They give up countless hours 
to ensure our members meet the standards re-
quired to patrol as volunteer active surf lifesavers 
on our beach. They turn up at assessments, train 
candidates in courses, conduct gear inspection, 
undertake audits, run proficiencies, attend training 
and assessments at other clubs, attend board of 
education meetings, write and review new course 
material, maintain IRBs. Our competition lifesav-
ing team have also got advanced lifesaving skills 
and from time to time assist with training.

Special thanks to all our trainers and assessors 
including Rebecca Chapman, Joe Mastrangelo, 
Kyra Jenkins, Tracey Hare-Boyd, Trae Hare-
Boyd, Frank Traugott, Richard Donaldson, David 
Guthrie, Shannon Job, Dan Hillier and Lachlan 
Van der Pluijm. Thanks also to Frank Traugott and 
Richard Donaldson in mentoring new trainers. 

Education is a team effort, and we are fortunate to 
have an excellent education team at North Steyne. 

Team Education

“Just wanted to say thank you so much for leading 
such a good program for the last 6 weeks. Before 

I moved to Australia at the end of 2019 I couldn’t 
even freestyle and would never swim in the sea 
so to now say I am a qualified surf life saver is 
such an achievement... something I would not 
have been able to do without all of your support, 
encouragement and extra training sessions. 
Really looking forward to enrolling on all of the 
other courses in the future.”

“I wanted to take the time to sincerely thank you 
four for what you have done for the group and 

for me over the past 2 months. Not only you have 
enabled me to learn and grow skills which will be 
helpful all my life but you have also inspired me 
by the way you contribute to the community and 
give to others without expecting anything in return. 
You can rely on me to give my best whenever I will 
have the chance to operate for the club. Merci.”
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BEACH ATTENDANCE:	          94128
    
PREVENTATIVE ACTIONS:		  234	

TOTAL RESCUES:			   13	  
No Gear  			     4
Rescue Board 			     1
Rescue Tube			     2 
IRB 				      6

TOTAL FIRST AID:			   29	
Drowning			     0
Fracture/Dislocation 		    1
Heart Related			     1
Major Marine Stings		    0
Major Wounds 			     2
Minor Cuts/Abrasions 		    8
Minor Marine Stings 		  10
Other				      6
Spinal				      1

Club Awards and Statistics 
Bronze Medallion
Aaron McCloskey
Aisling Ruane
Akari Sakauchi
Analiese Treacy-Ruane
Andrew	 Chatfield
Annabel Filmer
Antonio	 Remedios
Caitlin Heffernan
Cerys Walton
Craig Shadbolt
Dave Williams
David Hearn
Erin Colwell
Findlay Black
Harley van der Pluijm
Harrison Hogan
Joel Mathews
Kristie Walker
Lachlan	Bennett
Lexie Landrak
Lily Soares-Smith
Lou Lou Stanley
Luka Delaney
Margaret Barbouttis
Matthew Birley
Max Amen
Michael Reidy
Nicholas Reed
Roger Brant
Samuel Chubb
Scott Turner
Simon Herfort

SRC
Alec Parren
Alice Galt
Andrew Kinghorn
Charlotte Faulk
Cillian Barriscale
Dara Kehoe
Emilie Morris
Emma Winter
Emmett Mariotti
Eva Tompson
Faye McCloskey
Francesca Brady
Harriet Carmichael
Isabella Carmichael
Isabelle Breure
Jai Delaney
Lou van de Zande
Luka Delaney
Marielle Eslick
Neneh Hanson
Olivia O’Kelly
Oskar Townsin-Brant
Sofia Serventi
Sophia Nunn
Zoe Maher

ART
Ben Hildyard
Bernard Burrows

David Guthrie
Emilia Cimino
Hunter Auld
Jack Herbert
Kathryn	Tucker
Lachlan	van der Pluijm
Macgregor House
Peter Herbert
Salvador Ribeiro
Shane O’Neill
Toby Griffiths
Frank Traugott

IRB Crew

Emilia Cimino
Jessica O’Reilly
Kathryn	 Tucker
Matthew Riordan
Salvador Ribeiro
Sarah Lally
Lachlan Bennett
Liam Wheen
Antonio Remedios
Harry Hogan
Aaron McCloskey
Craig Shadbolt
Lou Lou Stanley
Scott Turner

First Aid
 
Maya Auld
Kai Brandson
Rebecca Chapman
Emilia Cimino
David Cowell
Janelle Cowell
Oscar Cowell
Janice Faaolatane
Tony Falzarano
Deb Foote 
David Guthrie 
Cath Hillier
Dan Hillier
Joe Jenkins 
Shannon Job 
Sarah Lally 
David Maguire 
Jeff Morris 
Greer Mason  
Jessica O’Reilly 
Damian O’Shannassy
Claire Oxlade
James Purvis
Suzie Rutherford
Karen Smith
Mark Stewart
Frank Traugottt
Kathryn Tucker
Jack Watt

RWC
Molly Parker
Aquatic Rescue
Jack Watt
Jonathan Holman
Sarah Lally
Salvador Ribeiro

Beach Management
Brian Mariotti
Claire Oxlade
Ewan Cooper-Frater
Lachlan Van der Pluijm
Niels Thelosen
Roisin Tumilty
Salvador Ribeiro



North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 114th Annual Report | Page 13

Club Captain’s Report
Season 2020/2021, what a season! We have had 
some big highs like our successful carnivals and 
low lows like the passing of NSSLSC members. 
Then, just when you thought it was safe to go 
out, we had further COVID-19 lockdowns which 
impacted many parts of the Club, especially patrol 
operational procedures.

Towards the end of the season, we almost got back 
to business as usual. However, throughout the year 
we have also had large surf days testing us and 
our skills, to pond like conditions (also testing us). 
Our members have endured again the Australian 
burning sun, freezing water and the perennial blue 
bottle-stung tourists and locals. We have had high 
activity days and quite contemplative days.  That 
is the experience of volunteer lifesaving at North 
Steyne. Importantly, I am very pleased that I can 
say that once again there have been “No Lives 
Lost “on North Steyne beach this season.  Well 
done Team NS!

Throughout this season we have seen changes 
to the way we run things, with an emphasis being 
put on flexibility for our patrolling members. This 
is a foreign concept for many I am sure, but it 
is now an important part of the way we support 
our members needs given the current global 

conditions and uncertainty.  With this in mind, the 
“voucher system” for subbing was used again to 
help encourage members to communicate and 
help a friend out.   It seemed to be well received 
with well over 100 vouchers being given out across 
the season resulting in an increased patronage at 
the bar or BBQ (when it was open).

Some observations from the season that I have 
seen as being part of numerous patrols include the 
due diligence our dedicated patrolling members 
have displayed - from managing potential spinal 
injuries to younger members whilst keeping the 
patient and parents calm and reassured; Rescues 
in trying conditions like the Australia Day Boat 

carnival; management of 
some significant fin chops 
and other open wounds 
requiring careful treatment, 
and of course managing 
stings from our least popular 
visitors - blue bottles.  There 
have also been emergency 
call outs for natural disasters. 
The professionalism of Team 
NS is always on display and as Club Captain it has 
been a privilege to observe and participate with 
you all in doing our service.

We lost Riverview and Redlands this season as a 
result of COVID-19. This had a significant impact 
on patrolling numbers. Despite this we still had 
228 patrolling members this season.  Even more 
impressive is that we patrolled 6,853 hours. That 
is an increase of over 800 hours from the previous 
season.  Whilst still down on average it is a 
fantastic result.  What is really impressive and a 
testament to the dedication and longevity of the 
club is that 48 members patrolled for more than 
40 hours this season! That is a 55% increase in 
the 40 hour club over last season. Well done and 
thank you for your service.  It should also be noted 
that we had another 46 members patrol over 30 
hours who may have completed 40 hours but for 
COVID-19. Again, thank you!  Well done all for 
your ongoing support of our club.

Given the above effort seen in volunteering at 
North Steyne I would also like to thank the families, 
friends, partners and loved ones who support our 
members during their volunteering. Without your 
understanding these services would not occur.

This season, I wanted to place more empasis 
on welcoming our newest candidates to Team 
NS  after they had passed their education 
courses.  I felt it to be an important time for 
connection whereby Life Members were invited to 
congratulate and present our new volunteers with 
their new uniforms and caps whilst telling stories 
of patrolling over the years and how far the club 
has come.  Jack Sutherland, Simon Fry amongst 
others were pleased to be invited.
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Purvis, who after many years have decided to step 
back from surf to pursue other adventures. The 
Purvis family will be missed but the door is always 
open for them to return!

This will be my last year as Club Captain. I would 
like to say thank you to all who have supported and 
mentored me in this role. It is a challenging role but 
rewarding one.  I will still be here patrolling and 
watching the next generation of club leadership 
develop the club and its membership.

See you on the beach 
Dan Hillier 
Club Captain

One of the biggest challenges each year is to 
ensure that we have our members and gear 
proficient to patrol. Again, the pandemic impacted 
this process however, the hard work was put in 
early and we had a successful gear inspection.  
For members, we had multiple skills maintenance 
sessions (proficienies) across all awards. I would 
like to say thank you to our Chief Training Officer 
and his team who organized trainers and assessors 
for the proficiencies and ensured we had a large 
number of members proficient early in the season.

As mentioned earlier I am very impressed with 
the capabilities and professionalism of our 
patrolling members and in particular, the people 
that organise and patrol with them each season, 
that is our Patrol Captains (PC’s).  We have been 
fortunate over many years to have a very stable 
group of experienced PC’s who are there season 
on season to impart their knowledge to their 
patrolling members, assisting with the training up 
of new SRC’s to Bronze, and passing on valuable 
patrol hacks to members.

I would like to thank Jack Watt, Mark Stewart, 
Jeff Brown, Ella Falzarano, Tony Falzarano , 
Des Silberberg, Kyra Jenkins, Dannii Edwards, 
Danny Gompes, Emma Hillier, David Cowell, 
James Purvis, Tracey Hare-Boyd, Paul Mathew, 
Tim Platt, and Lochie van der Pluijm as well as 
others who hold the Beach Management award 
and have helped out across the season,  some 
even stepping up and covering two or more patrols 
when required. You are all invaluable and a real 
asset to our club.

Further to this, it has been pleasing to see the  
establishment of new PC’s.  Our more experienced 
captains mentoring younger members wanting 
to step up, lead and develop further skills in surf 
lifesaving.  Some of the new PC’s are also of the 
digital generation which is great as now we have 
two way transfer of knowledge with the more 
seasoned PC’s getting tips on the new digital 
technology in surf and the seasoned PC’s passing 
on the local knowledge of our patch.  It is a great 
meshing of existing and new.  

Once again our IRB section was well managed 
with David Guthrie taking the reigns as IRB 
Captain and overseeing the introduction of a new 
motor and IRB’s.  Richard Donaldson supported 
David throughout the season ensuring a smooth 
transition and running of the IRB section.  Further, 
this season the club has looked at naming IRB’s as 
recognition of dedication and service by members 
to North Steyne. It was a great pleasure that the 
Club named a new IRB this season after our long 
serving IRB mentor Richard Donaldson.  Well 
deserved and thank you, Richard.

Thank you to Jack Watt who for the last two 
seasons has been my Vice Captain. Jack has 
been a fantastic support for me and the greater 
North Steyne team. Also a big thank you to James 
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IRB Captain’s Report
It’s only been 37 years that IRBs, in some form, have been operating off our beaches.
They are our most expensive and visible asset on the beach. At close to $20,000 
for each fully equipped craft, it’s not often that any surf club can outlay for another.
The cost of each craft is only exceeded by the value of the capability it brings during 
patrolling season, for water safety and the range of Surf Life Saving competition 
through the year.

North Steyne SLSC now have three operational IRB’s with the dedication of the 
‘Richard Donaldson’, a class 1 (soft hull) Thundercat on 11 April 2021. Richard has 
been instrumental in the maintenance of our club’s IRB capability for some time and 
he was appropriately recognised with the inaugural dedication of our newest IRB here at the Club. Many 
of our Life members, Board members and families attended this auspicious event which culminated in 
christening the new craft  as Richard gave his namesake a run. Well deserved Richard!

Our readiness to undertake IRB operations as a part of the state emergency services was tested earlier 
this year with a forward deployment of eight IRB’s from a range of North Beaches branch clubs in support 
of flood affected communities in the Central Coast region of NSW. Our IRB personnel represented North 
Steyne SLSC strongly and demonstrated our capacity to step-up at short notice. Thank you to Michael 
Altenberger and Jack Watt for their rapid response.

In training, we have conducted two IRB Crew courses and qualified 14 new ‘Crewies’ this season. 
Congratulations to Matthew Riordan, Salvador Ribeiro, Sarah Lally, Emilia Cimino, Jessica O’Reilly, 
Kathryn Tucker, Lachlan Bennett, Liam Wheen, Antonio Remedios, Harry Hogan, Aaron McCloskey, Craig 
Shadbolt, Lou Lou Stanley and Scott Turner. 

Next up will be an IRB Driver’s course to finally qualify a few individuals who have been quietly building 
their skill to tackle the next assessment, so keep listening out for a call for nominations as we approach 
the next season.

David Guthrie 
IRB Captain
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Youth Director’s Report
Whilst we adjusted to an unprecedented off- 
season under COVID-19 conditions, Youth 
activity for the 2020-21 season kicked off with a 
little uncertainty. We would normally train and 
socialise year-round, however, due to COVID-19 
restrictions, we were unable to continue this. Group 
time has been invaluable in the past, allowing the 
club’s Youth to train and upskill and to build and 
maintain friendship groups, which often extend 
past the patrol season, into the community and 
beyond.  All North Steyne friends are a potential 
BFF (a “person’s best friend” if you are not up with 
the acronym) – as demonstrated by our “youthful” 
A-Team who continue to socialise in and around 
the Club, several decades after many had first met 
at the club as youth members.

Despite the constraints of newly imposed 
COVID-19 restrictions, there were some “good” 
SLSA changes introduced this season. We saw 
the rollout of the new online learning platform 
for education and skills maintenance which was 
enthusiastically embraced by our Youth members. 
It was a great opportunity for Youth engagement 
where the student became the teacher. On a few 
occasions, young and not so young heads were 
huddled over phones scrolling and demo’s taking 
place with our Youth in charge of the conversation. 
Such a wonderful sight!

As restrictions eased throughout the season, our 
Youth returned to group training, proficiencies, 
patrols and surf sports. Overall, our Youth 
numbers are slightly down on last season, but 
on par with SNB Branch membership trends. Our 
Youth currently represent 45% of our club’s total 
patrolling membership and last season contributed 
to over 60% of all total patrolling hours. A truly 
dedicated bunch juggling patrols, study, work, 
sports and life commitments.

On top of patrols, several youth members 
represented North Steyne at State and Branch 
lifesaving workshops, a Marine Rescue SAREX 
Program, Drone Operators Intro Course, SLNSW 
Lifesaving Development Camp (Team Leaders & 
Participants), the Young Leadership Camp and 
Junior Lifesaver of the Year through branch.

Youth were active in many parts of the Club this 
season including Rescue of the Month nomination, 
SLS branch carnival winners, medalists and 
finalists, club carnival volunteers – workforce, water 
safety, First Aid, revival of junior surf boat crews, 
assistance with Nippers and Ripper Nippers water 
safety and beach coordination, assistance on the 
BBQ, water safety at community events and club 
Strategic Planning Workshops. We are fortunate 
to have a committed group of young members. 
Thank you to our youth and families that have 
contributed to make North Steyne SLSC a great 
club. Our future is in good hands.

Our youth were also 
upskilling with eight new 
IRB Crew, another eight 
gaining their Adavanced 
Resuscitation Technique 
(ART) and 14 new 
Bronzies. Thank you to all 
the trainers and assessors 
who assisted with their 
training.

SRC Program
A season highlight was the “graduation” of the 
U14 Nippers/SRC group through to cadets. We 
had one of the biggest and most resilient groups 
for several years with 25 SRC’s completing their 
assessment, in some cases after five months of 
training. Thank you to David Cowell and Patrol 
12 for welcoming the group to their first patrol 
on an overcast Saturday afternoon in February. 
 
This group joins the sixth year of the Noughties 
cadet program (those born from 2000-2009) 
and the coveted “Noughties” hoody, complete 
with name/nickname on the back which remains 
a firm staple in the North Steyne SLSC teen 
wardrobe.  We are now seeing “No.3” in the Hoody 
nicknames, referring to the 3rd sibling to go through 
the cadet program. Hopefully that will continue. 

I would like to offer a big shout out to all my helpers. 
It’s a tough job getting 25 thirteen year old’s ready 
to be assessed and I couldn’t do it without you 
all! Jo Cooper, my assistant, Kyra Jenkins for all 
your board coaching, fellow club trainers, Trae 
Hare-Boyd, Hanna Clare and Frank Traugott, past 
and present cadets Ewan Cooper-Frater, Frazer 



Richardson, Rose Richardson, Sophie Tetley and 
Ned Hillier for all your education and water safety 
assistance.

Thank you to Brian Mariotti, Age Managers: Kevin 
Kehoe and Shaun Parren, our COVID-19 Marshall: 
Nikki Parren and Water Safety Dads: Roger van de 
Zande, Steve Hanson and Roger Brant. 

A very special thank you to our youth members for 
your resilience this season. This was particularly 
evident after an uncertain off-season. Your “go-
to” attitude after coming out of forced lockdown 
periods and facing new psychological and social 
situations truly conveys the spirit of North Steyne 
SLSC.

I look forward to seeing you in and around the club, 
and to a more certain season ahead.

Jodie Frazer  
Youth Director
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Despite COVID-19, North Steyne Nippers has had 
another great season! Enrolments held steady. 
We saw growing carnival participation and strong 
attendance at our regular Sunday Nippers programs.  
 
Our Sunday Nippers continued to see a great 
turnout this session. We carried on regardless 
of weather conditions; sharing the pool with 
Queenscliff and organising activities in the hall 
on the few occasions when rough surf conditions 
closed our beach.

Sunday Nippers simply would not happen without 
our enthusiastic and committed team of Age 
Managers, a significant number of whom qualified 
for their Bronze Medallion this season. With their 
extra helping hands on water safety it meant that 
every nipper could get a go in the water and have 
fun this season.

We fielded a strong team at all carnivals this 
season and saw Nippers place and medal at inter-
club and branch championships. We hosted a very 
successful Nippers’ carnival in November on our 
beach. Well done and thank you to Sarah Lally 
for leading and our Nipper parents and helpers 
for their support and commitment to making that 
carnival a success. We also had the largest team 
for years at the NSW Nipper State Championships 
at Swansea Belmont with a team of 30 Nippers 
getting through quarters, semis and racing in finals. 

Our State Nipper competitors collected a silver 
medal for the U10 boys’ individual boards, U9 
boys’ relay and a Bronze medal for the U9 girls’ 
relay. Well done to our competitors, officials, age 
managers and parents who helped us field such 
great teams for these events.

North Steyne was well represented by Emilie 
Morris and Oskar Townsin-Brant at this season’s 
Junior Lifesaver of the Year (JLOTY) awards, 
with Emilie being awarded the overall Branch 
winner (female). All JLOTY candidates had to 
submit a detailed proposal for an initiative within 
surf lifesaving, attend workshops and a series 
of interviews. Emilie’s concept was around 
supporting the mental health of lifesavers who 
attend traumatic incidents. Oskar’s proposal was 
to implement a buddy system on patrol for SRCs. 
Both incredible efforts. 

The biggest and most resilient SRC group for 
many years qualified for their SRC in February 
after many delays and postponements due to 
Covid19 and heavy surf conditions. They received 
their uniforms from club legends Jack Sutherland, 
Simon Fry and club captain Dan Hillier who shared 
some words of wisdom with our new lifesavers. 
Say “hello” when you see them on patrol in their 
bright new uniforms. Thanks to trainer Jodie 

Frazer, age managers 
Kevin Kehoe, Shaun and 
Nikki Parren, water safety 
crew Roger van der Zandt, 
Steve Hanson and Roger 
Brant. 

I’d like to congratulate 
Nippers Chairman’s 
Award winners, Charlie 
Walker and Rory Pennie 
for their super efforts this 
season. Charlie and Rory were thrilled to receive a 
new bike each as prizes, thanks to Andrew Taylor 
of Brookvale Bikes. We farewelled our senior 
(U14) Nippers and SRC group, led by Junior Club 
Captains, Clara Brocklehurst and Emmett Mariotti 
and welcomed our new Junior Club Captains, 
Kaea Phillips and Oliver Crofton.

Thank you to our coaches Rubin Ruzicka (beach), 
Tom Bedingfield & Kyra Jenkins (boards) and Peta 
Kilgour (swimming). We have had an enthusiastic 
group of Nippers attending our extra sessions; 
beach sprints on Sunday mornings before Nippers 
and boards on Saturday afternoons. Thanks to 
Bernie Burrows, Jon Colwell and the other parents 
for their efforts running the board sessions week in-
week out, summer and winter. Our ever-improving 
carnival performances are thanks to the time and 
effort that our coaches as well as Bernie Burrows, 
Jon Colwell and other parents have invested in our 
Nippers this season. Thank you!

Thanks to our Club President, Christine Gibbs 
Stewart and Board of Directors for your continued 
support to our Nippers program, and to all our 
patrolling members who provided water safety for 
us during the season.

To our sponsors, without you we could not run 
our Nippers program, so thank you. Your financial 
support provides essential equipment, clothing 
and funds to help cover our operational expenses.

After four seasons as Nippers Director, I will not 
be returning in the role next season. I would like to 
thank Hillary Burrows for her energy and support as 
my assistant. I am pleased to leave the program in 
such good health and in such good hands. Hillary 
Burrows along with a new team will continue to 
build the Nippers program, and I am confident will 
make it even better next season. 

Thank you everyone for your support and 
especially Nippers for the fun in the sun and water 
we have had over those four seasons.

Brian Mariotti 
Junior Activities Director

Junior Activity Director’s Report
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NIPPER STATE CHAMPIONSHIP RESULTS
U9 Boys Individual Boards 4th Place Lucas Bell

U9 Boys Individual Boards 10th Place Joel Colwell

U9 Boys Board Relay SILVER MEDAL Lucas Bell, Joel Colwell, Joel Robinson

U9 Girls Board Relay BRONZE MEDAL Olivia Murphy, Milli Crofton, Addison 
Burrows

U9 Girls Individual Boards 5th Place Milli Crofton

U10 Boys Individual Boards SILVER MEDAL Felix Stephens

U10 Boys Individual Boards 5th Place Harvey Collins

U10 Boys Board Relay 4th Place Felix Stephens, Harvey Collins, Iggy 
Jenkins

U11 Boys Board Relay 9th Place Kody Burrows, Tom Bell,  Rory Pennie
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Ripper Nippers
It is exciting to see that the SLSA Inclusive Beaches 
program continues to expand across Australia with 
more surf clubs making it possible for nippers with 
disabilities to participate on the beach beside their 
peers each week.

The North Steyne Ripper Nipper program enjoyed 
its 8th season on our beach with 35 Ripper Nippers 
and their siblings joined by the families and the 
five or six regular North Steyne cadets who are 
their mentors and water safety. This is regularly 
bolstered by Jodie Frazer and Jo Cooper always 
willing to help and take charge as required.

Inclusion is all about acceptance, participation, 
education and most importantly fun. Each week 
our participants undertake the regular program 
and are encouraged with support to learn new 
skills or try something different. We continue to 
transition our Rippers to mainstream Nippers 
where possible.

The season was challenged by social distancing 
and a Northern Beaches lockdown due to 
COVID-19, but we were still able to kick off 
in October. We had several new Rippers join 
us on the beach and we said goodbye to Dean 
and Lachlan who both moved to Queensland in 
December. They will enrol in new schools and 
intend to join surf clubs on the Gold Coast that run 
similar programs.

A couple of Ripper Nipper sessions coincided with 
patrol commitments this season, so our Rippers 
received a hands-on lesson about the equipment 
used on patrol, meeting the patrol team and 
learning about first aid. Our last session for the 
season was also a patrol day where our beach 
was visited by an aquatic animal which kept us 
entertained and provided some great photos

Unfortunately, there were no carnivals for our 
Rippers this season with the dates having to be 
postponed because of restrictions. The plans are 
to have a carnival early in the next season. 

Whilst there were no carnivals, we did hold our 

Ripper Nipper Presentation at Balgowlah RSL 
in June. This was well attended with all Rippers 
on the day presented with their hoodies by our  
Club President, Chris Gibbs Stewart, Balgowlah 
RSL President Des McAteer with Directors John 
Garland and Dave O’Brien, Manly Lions President 
Jarrod Kreft with Nigel Jeny and Elaine Turner. 
Manly Lions donated two soft rescue boards for 
use by our Rippers. Thank you Manly Lions!

Again, we have been able to provide the Ripper 
Nipper program at no cost to our Rippers because 
of the continued generous support from Balgowlah 
RSL, Manly Lions Club, NSW Government – Office 
of Sport, Surf Life Saving Australia and of course, 
the North Steyne SLSC Board and our members. 

See you all on the beach next season.

David Cowell 
Ripper Nipper Facilitator
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Marketing Director’s Report
This season proved to be one of our more difficult in 
114 years on North Steyne beach with a pandemic 
providing challenges to our patrols, our programs 
and carnivals, training, and education and how 
we could interact with our local community. North 
Steyne SLSC and our entire “Black & Gold” team 
demonstrated how we could still operate in this 
difficult environment without incident. Something 
we should all be immensely proud.

Sponsors, Grants and Donations
Our Men’s Open surfboat crew were successful 
in securing sponsorship for the A crew and the 
surfboats section. Ned Australian Whisky 
became a new sponsor, their name taking pride 
of place on one of our surf boats and supporting 
our A crew competition during the Ocean Thunder 
series. They also provided a new competition 
tent and merchandise for our surfboat teams. 
Welcome! We look forward to having a long 
association through mutually beneficial promotions.  

Christine Perry and the team at Pure Legal 
sponsored our senior competitors with the monies 
being used for a competition jacket for our Branch, 
State and National competitors. The Pure Legal 
surfboat continued to take the line at carnivals 
and made the journey to the “Aussies”  on the 
Sunshine Coast with Dave Maguire being behind 
the wheel and at the ready as sweep. Thank you to 
Pure Legal for your continued support.

Manly Longboard Co continues to support our 
competition crews, decking them out in training 

and competition gear. 
The Friendly Dentist 
also returned this season 
to fund Nippers T-shirts 
which were distributed at 
the end of season awards 
presentation. Please 
support our sponsors and 
let them know you are part 
of the “Black & Gold” team at North Steyne SLSC.

The Balgowlah RSL continue their long 
association with our club. Their support continues 
to assist with our programs and costs in running 
the club each season.

Balgowlah RSL through the Clubs Grants NSW 
and Manly Lions Club continue to support our 
club with generous contributions towards our 
Ripper Nipper, Nipper and Youth programs. 
Manly Lions again donated their BBQ trailer and 
volunteers at all carnivals hosted by North Steyne 
this season. These relationships continue to be our 
strong  community partnerships. Representatives 
from both clubs attended the North Steyne SLSC 
awards night, committing again to support us next 
season.
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Our building grants from the NSW Government 
Office of Sport and SLSA Surf Clubs Grants slowed 
with access being limited to the club at different 
times throughout the season. Those grants allow us 
to make improvements to safety and amenity of the 
club. The club continues in discussions with Council 
about ongoing maintenance and upgrade of the North 
Steyne SLSC building.

Our Nippers awards were again supported by the 
generous donation by Andrew Taylor and the team 
at Brookvale Bike Factory. The Nippers Chairman’s 
Award is always hotly contested with a boys and girls 
bike donated for the winner of each category. Andrew 
has been doing this for almost 20 years with 40 bikes 
being donated for this and our fundraising efforts over 
that time. Thank you for your generous support.

We cannot do it without our sponsors and all those 
that support us, and we thank them very much for 
their continued support.

Fundraising
Raising funds for our club and our broader community 
continued through our BBQ’s, raffles, community 
events, and other initiatives. We partnered with 
Manly Lions to provide on ground support for those 

communities still affected by last year’s bushfires 
and this year’s floods. Our collection of bottles has 
been cashed in to also support their vision charity 
programs. They also provided hand sanitiser to the 
Ripper Nipper families and the club with all proceeds 
from the sales going back to North Steyne SLSC.

Fundraising for North Steyne SLSC this season saw 
over 80 volunteers raise nearly $4,000 for this year’s 

Northern Beaches Council Sun Run in February. 
This event was also a blueprint for all other events 
being the first major socially distanced run to 
demonstrate that these events can be done in the 
pandemic environment.

Our Black & Gold raffle was finally drawn with ticket 
sales extending over the last two seasons. The  
main prize was an Artussi Fridge by Eurolinx, the 
prize being drawn by Vince Carrozza, the National 
Commercial Manager. Other prizes included a 
nipper board from Bennett donated back to the 
Rippers by Jean Hay AM, prize packs from Dripping 
Wet, vouchers from Brookvale Bike Factory and 
Balgowlah RSL, Warringah Golf Club, Diageo, 
Manly Surf School and Zoggs.

Our Nippers participated in an event in Manly with 
Mick Fanning who with FS8 Studio donated a 
signed Mick Fanning surfboard. This will be the first 
fundraiser in the new season with the proceeds to 
go towards the new Nippers trailer!

Unfortunately, Channel Nine Community Relations 
sponsorship of surf clubs came to an end prior 
to the commencement of the season. We thank 
Karen McCart and the team at Channel 9 for 
their sponsorship and support at events over past 
seasons and our beach is always open should they 
return.

Finally, a huge thanks to Alex Wymer (Salier), 
Assistant Marketing Director, for all that she has 
done this season including undertaking arranging 
new competition clothing and also thanks to Cath 
Hillier for taking on communication via club social 
media and newsletters. What they have produced 
is fabulous!!

See you on the beach!

David Cowell 
Director of Marketing/ Grants Officer
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General Activities Director
The social scene at the club has been 
interrupted like most of our lives by COVID-19 
and unfortunately each time we planned a 
social event, lockdown or increased restrictions 
meant another postponement. Most of the social 
activities have revolved around the Nippers 
Carnival, the Australia Day Surfboat Carnival and 
Club Champs which were all a huge success.

We are delighted that the Clubroom has had a bit of 
a makeover with a new coat of paint, new lighting 
and now sports a new HD digital TV.  We will be 
finishing off the decoration with the installation of 
some of the important trophies, photos and club 
memorabilia.  Don’t forget that the Clubroom is 
open to all members, so come down to the Sunday 
sessions and for Friday night SIPS.  A huge thank 
you must go to Paul Matthew who once again 
has been the champion of keeping the Clubroom 
open for members and guests.  Also, thank 
you to those members who gained their RSA’s 
and helped behind the bar during the season.

The Northern Beaches Council have handed 
over the management of the venue hire to 
us  i.e. the use of the main hall,  which has 
been long awaited.   The hall and clubroom are 
available for bookings for functions, parties and 
events, please consider this if you are looking 
out for a venue for your next family event.   The 
Clubroom hire is available to members only. 

Like most not for profit and volunteer 
organisations, North Steyne relies on any 
sponsorship, both in financial as well as in kind 
donations.  I would like to acknowledge and thank 
our sponsors who assist us generously in so 
many ways.  The introduction of Ned Australian 
Whisky this season has been much enjoyed in 
the Clubroom bar, particularly by the Boaties.  

The Lions Club have been wonderful with their 
support of the BBQ at our carnivals, and we certainly 
kept them busy in their excellent pop up BBQ.  Big 
thanks to them. We were also delighted that after 
a couple of false starts we were able to host the 
Annual Awards Presentation Night at the Balgowlah 
RSL, who are a long-time supporter of the Club.

Our regular Sunday BBQ was also interrupted 
because of lockdowns and restrictions but I 
would like to acknowledge all the volunteers who 
kept it going and gave their time to help with 
this important fundraising element of the club.   

The A Team and A Minus Team were delighted 
to get out of lockdown and take up their regular 
spots on BBQ duty.  They will continue to run the 
BBQ right through the off-season, so if you are 
around the club on either the first or last Sunday 

of the month, do not 
miss out on one of 
their Bombora’s and 
stop by for a chat.

We have enjoyed 
the arrival of Kazzi 
Beach Greek across 
the road from the 
Clubhouse and their delicious authentic Greek 
food.  They offer Club members a discount, so 
do head there to get your coffee to enjoy with 
your sausage sizzle on a Sunday morning.

Thank you to Janice Faaolatane, Assistant 
General Activities Director for her enthusiasm in 
getting Nipper Parents back on the BBQ.  Nipper 
parents from all age groups are encouraged 
to give up one Sunday morning a season to 
volunteer an hour or two serving on the BBQ.

If you are interested at all in getting involved 
with events and social activities, please contact 
me. As you know, most volunteer organisations 
rely on a handful of willing, crazy people and 
we could all do with many extra hands to help!

We look forward to organising some fun 
social events in the near future, so please 
keep an eye on the social media and read 
the newsletter for diary dates.  Look forward 
to seeing you next season around the Club.

Claire Oxlade 
General Activities Director
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Surf Sports Director’s Report
When the season kicked off in October 2020, there 
was still uncertainty around how and if we would 
be able to do any carnivals or events this season. 
However, this season ended up seeing North 
Steyne host three carnivals and saw an increase 
in our competitors, in particular for our Boat crews, 
Lifesaving and Master’s competitors in addition to 
more members joining in for our regular Sunday 
morning training sessions.  So pleasing, that we 
put on an additional Saturday morning session 
too. The Boaties maintained their sponsorship with 
Manly Longboard Co, Pure Legal and secured a 
new sponsor in Ned Australian Whisky. 

Carnivals
This season a lot of due diligence and management 
was carried out in the background to ensure we 
were able to run all our carnivals in a COVID safe 
way. For all our carnivals, despite a very limited 
time frame of organizing and running the carnivals, 
all the carnivals were successfully run without 
any issues. Our first carnival, the Nippers Water 
Carnival in November, had over 350 Nippers 
competing from the branch. The weather and water 
were perfect; and a great opportunity for some of 
our nippers to have a go at their first carnival. 

A localized COVID-19 outbreak was very close to 
jeopardizing the hosting of the amazing Australia 
Day Boat Carnival! In true North Steyne spirit, with 
ten days’ notice we were able to pull off a very 
successful two-day carnival. There did end up 
being more crews entered than last year, which 
not only surprised us, but also Branch and the 
recorders. This carnival saw the debut of our two 
junior crews; North Steyne Wind Riders (U19 Male) 
and North Steyne Shenanigans (U19 Female). 
The surf picked up on the second day, making it 
an added challenge for our amazing crew on water 
safety to collect oars and a few sweeps too!

Our last carnival of the season was Branch 
Championships. This was another last-minute 
carnival to organize and run. This carnival was for 
the 1km/2km run for all ages, open and masters; 
beach for Open and Masters in addition to March 
Past, R&R and the Lifesaving Events; Champion 
Lifesaver and Patrol Competition. This carnival 
also provided a great opportunity to showcase the 
wonderful Lifesaving competitors and for our new 
U17 competitors to give it a go with Champion 
Lifesaver. 

In a very challenging year 
for fundraising and revenue 
streams, hosting these 
three carnivals was an 
amazing opportunity for a 
revenue stream in addition 
to raising our profile as 
a club to run successful 
Surf Sports Carnivals. 
This would not have been 
possible without the amazing support of our core 
carnival committee, first aid, water safety and 
BBQ/bar duties. Special mention to Ally Stirling, 
Deb Foote, Kyra Jenkins, Jack Watt, Dave Guth-
rie, Shannon Job, David Cowell, Claire Oxlade, 
Dan Hillier, Cath Hillier, Sophie Egden and Pip 
Rees-Evans. 
 
Masters
The hot event of the master’s calendar, Palm 
Beach Twilight, was unfortunately cancelled this 
year due to COVID-19. However, a small group 
of us made it to Branch Championships at Palm 
Beach. The weather was not favorable and due 
to some bluebottles, we were limited to just board 
events. Erin Colwell and Lou Lou Stanley had their 
very first carnival and had a great performance. 
Despite the challenging surf, Erin came second 
in Board (35-30) and joined Lou Lou and Sarah 
for the Board 110 Age group picking up a Gold 
Medal. Deb also picked up a medal for the Board 
(Bronze). Salvador also made his debut in masters 
and finished 4th in the board. Thanks also to Jono 
Colwell who was our team manager.

At Branch for 1km/2km run, Caroline Yarnell and 
Shannon Job, represented North Steyne and due 
to the limited Masters competitors in their age 
group, competed with the Opens. 

At State, Caroline picked up a Gold in the 1km 
beach run (60-64) with Sal collecting Gold in Male 
(30-34) Sprints and Flags. An amazing outcome 
for his first State! Sarah finished second in the 
Board (35-39) at State. The first time competing in 
individual event. Erin also had an amazing State 
campaign competing in Board, Swim and Tube 
Swim (35-39).

At Aussies, Caroline picked up silver in the 1km 
beach run (60-64) and Sal had a good campaign 
for the Sprints (4th) and Flags (7th) and left with a 
hamstring injury; the type of injury that we all dread 
when we compete in the masters age group! 

Lifesaving Competition
This season we had a large cohort of competitors 
for Champion Lifesaver, with the recruitment of 
four amazing U17 females: Jess O’Reilly, Kathryn 
Tucker, Emilia Cimino and Evie Farrell. 
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With only two weeks to study 
the manual and four weeks 
for practical, the girls had a 
fantastic result at Branch with 
Evie getting Gold and Kathryn 
Silver and Emilia 5th and Jess 
6th. Great work girls!

For Open and Masters 
competitors, Branch is 
generally viewed as a warm 
up for State Championhsips. 
State this year was held at 

Swansea and we had seven members in our team. 
Shannon came away with Gold! The following day, the 
team returned for a second year at Patrol Competition 
and with a larger field of teams, the team won the 
Lifesaver Relay; and ended up with a bronze medal. An 
amazing result and improvement on last year’s scores 
too. 

The campaign continued to Aussies and with Jack Watt 
out for an injury, we were fortunate to have Lachie Van 
der Pluijm join the team with a few weeks to train. The 
competition at Aussies was tough and we could see why 
Northcliffe and Alexandra Headland have dominated 
these events for years. The team did amazing with 
Shannon claiming Gold in Champion lifesaver (30-39) 
Sarah finished off 4th and in Patrol Competition finished 
off in 6th Place. Some of the standout performances was 
the Lifesaver Relay and the team swim performance. 
Well done to all the Lifesaving competitors for an 
amazing season.

Surf Boats
At the start of the season we started off with three crews 
plus the master’s crew, by the end of the season we can 
proudly say we have five crews plus the master’s crew. 

This season was an amazing opportunity for me 
personally to get to know this cohort of our members 
a bit better and know more about the sport. One thing 
that I did not appreciate was the dedication to not only 
their crew but to all those who row within the club. The 
dedication to training during the season, meeting their 
patrolling commitments and competing is commendable. 

The teams were able to compete in local carnivals 
with an amazing result for the new U19 females 
‘The Shenanigans’ taking out Bronze at Branch 
Championships. The Neds (Open male), along with 
some of the reserves, also took on the  Ocean Thunder 
series that was held throughout the season at Dee Why.  

The annual Australian Surfboat Rowers League 
(ASRL) carnival was held at MollyMook again in 
February and all crews performed well.  It was a very 
strong campaign for North Steyne; the crews had 
some of their best performances during this carnival. 
The Neds braced the big surf on the Saturday and on 
the Sunday, due to dangerous surf, the carnival was 
moved to the North beach, allowing some racing for 
the Juniors and the Women’s. 

With some rough and dangerous conditions towards 
the end of the season, State Championships was 
postponed however Tigerlillies (Open Female), 
Buccaneers (Male Reserve) and Mullets (U23 
Males) were able to compete later with some great 
rowing. 

The Buccaneers finished off their season with their 
debut at Aussies on the Sunshine Coast. Special 
mention goes to Pip Rees-Evans, who rowed with 
the U19 Males allowing them the opportunity to 
compete at the North Steyne Carnival and Collaroy 
Young Guns; and Nick Perry and Oscar Cowell for 
jumping in to join the U23 males for the remainder 
of their season. Alex Salier, also jumped into the 
Open Female for the crew to finish off the season. 
Amazing team spirit! None of this would have been 
possible without the support and guidance from Colin 
Stanford and Dave Maguire – the sweeps/coaches 
who turn up to the training and all the carnivals. 

Officials and Water Safety
Being able to compete in the carnivals would not 
be possible without our amazing members who 
are our officials and water safety. Thank you to our 
officials this year: Keith Abraham, Joe Mastrangelo 
III, Shannon Job, Deb Foote, Tim Lawrence, Jodie 
Frazer, Jo Cooper, Sarah Lally, Ronan Maguire and 
Bernie Burrows. 
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Club Championships
Club championships was held on Sunday 11th April, 
and despite being in school holidays and the Boaties 
away for State champs, we had a great turn out! 
The schedule of events was shuffled a bit with a 
few new events included. Dare I say that the 40 – 
49 males were the most competitive group! It was 
also wonderful to see a few of the younger members, 
Nippers helping with recording and joining in for the 
‘across club’ relay as well as the U14, U15 and U17 
competing. The main event, was the Patrol Team 
relay with the Active Reserves taking out the win! I 
don’t think Bernie, Jono and Niels will ever let us live 
that one down. 

This has been my inaugural year in this position and 
have thoroughly enjoyed it! A special mention to Deb, 
the matriarch of the Lifesaving events; an amazing 
mentor for me has been and always there if I need to 
ask a question or for some advice. Deb also spends 
so many additional hours training us for Champion 
lifesaver and Patrol Competition, and also other 
members from across Branch. 

Thanks to Shannon and Jack who have supported me 
in this role and listen to my crazy ideas or suggestions. 
Thanks to all our wonderful members who put their 
hands up and support us for the carnivals, helping 
out for BBQs and also coming along to training. 

Stay safe and see you at the beach. 
Sarah Lally 
Surf Sports Director
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NSW STATE CHAMPIONSHIP RESULTS
60 - 64 Women 1km run Caroline Yarnell 1st Gold Medal

Open Champion Lifesaver Shannon Job 1st Gold Medal

Male (30-34) Sprints and Flags Salvator Ribeiro 1st Gold Medal

Masters Board Relay Sarah Lally 2nd Silver Medal

Open Patrol Competition
Deb Foote, Sarah Lally, Shannon 

Job, Jack Watt, Kyra Jenkins,  
Ewan Cooper-Frater

3rd Bronze Medal

NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP RESULTS
30 -39 Male Champion Lifesaver Shannon Job 1st  Gold Medal

60-64 Women 1km run  Caroline Yarnell 2nd Silver Medal

30-39 Female Champion Lifesaver Sarah Lally 4th place

30-34 Male Sprints Salvator Ribeiro 4th place

Open Patrol Competition 
Deb Foote, Sarah Lally, Shannon 
Job, Kyra Jenkins, Ewan Cooper-

Frater, Lachlan Van der Pluijm
6th place

30-34 Male Flags Salvator Ribeiro 7th place

40 plus Female Champion Lifesaver Deb Foote 8th place

Open male 2km Ocean Swim Ewan Cooper-Frater  9th place

Reserve Male Surf Boats The Buccaneers 33rd place
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North Steyne Awards 2020 - 2021

Captain’s Patrol
Captain: Lachlan van der Pluijm, VC: Des Silberberg, ART: Sarah 
Lally, IRBD: Micahel Rees-Evans, IRBC: Ross Downey, Senior: Danny 
Flynn, Julia Bell, Junior: Emilia Cimino, Pieter Marais, SRC: Isabella 
Carmichael, Luka Delaney

Clem Susans Memorial Trophy -Best Boatman David Maguire

Rastus Evans Memorial Trophy 
Most Outstanding Surfboat Crew

Female U19 Shenanigan’s - Olivia Kehoe, Sarah Kinghorn, 
Abbey Hillier, Maya Walton, Chloe Woodward

Maud Druitt Trophy Most Outstanding Team Open Women’s - The Tigerlillies - Ally Stirling, Sophie 
Egden, Molly Parker, Pip Rees-Evans, Alex Salier

Masters Competitor of the Year Caroline Yarnell

Open Competitor of the Year Oscar Cowell and Nick Perry

U19 Competitor of the Year Pip Rees-Evans

U17 Competitor of the Year Pieter Marais

Garry O’Sullivan Trophy 
Training Officer of the Year

Kyra Jenkins

Keith Abraham Trophy 
Assessor of the Year

Joe Mastrangelo

Best Junior Patrolman Harrison Hogan

Best Junior Patrolwoman Lexi Landrak and Anabel Filmer

Best Senior Patrolman Stuart Crofton

Best Senior Patrolwoman Sophie Egden

Peter Logan Memorial Shield  
Best First Year Bronze Holder

Lou Lou Stanley

The Chris Dooley Age Manager of the Year Kevin Kehoe

Brother Ross Downard Memorial Trophy 
Captain’s Trophy

Kyra Jenkins

Harry Taubman Memorial Shield 
Most Lifesaving Awards

Salvador Ribeiro

Vanessa Anderson Memorial Award Aaron McCloskey

Neil Newton Memorial Trophy 
Volunteer of the Year

Brian Mariotti

Alan McClure Memorial award  
Young Club Person of the Year

Jack Watt

Philip Hodson Memorial Trophy 
Patrolperson of the Year

Jeff Brown

George Morgan Memorial Shield 
Club Person of the Year

David Guthrie

President’s Award Jack Sutherland

George Webb Memorial Trophy 
Patrol of the Year

Patrol 7:  Captain: Emma Hillier, Steven Mastrangelo, Claire Oxlade, 
Deb Foote, Malcolm Chapman, Nick Greenhalgh, Harrison Hogan, 
Lachlan Bennett, Joel Matthews, Jack Watt, Ruby Watt, Claire Housego, 
Holly Butler, Sophie Tetley
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Patrol Hours 2020 - 2021
Altenburger Michael 45
Anderson John 13.75
Anese Lisa 14
Auld Hunter 22.25
Auld Maya 29
Aylwin Ignacio 4.25
Barbouttis Margaret 27
Barrelle Emily 32.25
Barrelle James 4.25
Barriscale Cillian 20.5
Basil-Jones Stephen 4.75
Bell Julia 26.5
Bellenger James 36
Bennett Lachlan 19
Benns Matthew 27.5
Bernerius Michael 21.75
Birch Ross 13.75
Birley Joshua 26.25
Birley Matthew 42.52
Black Findlay 4.25

Brady Francesca 15.75
Brandson Kai 17.5
Brant Roger 23.25
Breure Isabelle 9.5
Brown Jeffrey 45
Burns Mark 36
Burrows Bernard 26.75
Butler Holly 13.75
Button Colleen 42
Carmichael Harriet 12
Carmichael Isabella 9.5
Chapman Malcolm 36.5
Cimino Emilia 43.25
Clare Hanna 83
Collins William 15.75
Colwell Erin 23.75
Colwell Jonathan 9.75
Cooper Joanne 48.75
Cooper-Frater Ewan 55.25
Cowell David 41.75
Cowell Oscar 27.5
Crofton Stuart 46.5
Delaney Luka 13.75
Delaney Jai 16.25

Donaldson Richard 34
Downey Ross 36.75
Edwards Danielle 37.5
Egden Sophie 64
Falzarano Ella 22.75
Falzarano Shaun 19
Falzarano Tonino 39.5
Farrell Sean 15
Farrell Evie 44.5
Faulk Charlotte 15.75
Filmer Annabel 45.5
Fletcher Rory 13.75
Flynn Daniel 39.25
Foote Deborah 38
Ford Aidan 37
Ford Dylan 41.25
Frazer Jodie 74.75
Galt Alice 4.25
Garling Matthew 13.25
Gertenbach Matthew 18.5
Gibbeson Daniel 32.25
Gibbs Stewart Christine 65.5
Gompes Danny 19
Gordon Luke 31.75
Grant Jennifer 18
Greenhalgh Nick 31.75
Griffith Cameron 13.75
Griffiths Toby 40.75
Guthrie David 123.8
Hamer Thomas 49
Hanson Neneh 8.75
Hare Mechelle 42
Hare-Boyd Tracey 83.25
Hare-Boyd Trae 79.5
Haskard Piers 13.75
Hassell James 31.25
Hearn David 4.25
Heffernan Caitlin 31.75
Henzlik Kirk 27.5
Herbert Jack 22.5
Herbert Peter 22.5
Hillier Abbey 39.68
Hillier Ned 54.59
Hillier Daniel 150.75

Hillier Emma 73.25
Hogan Harrison 32.25
Holman Jonathan 38.25
Housego Clare 17.5
Jenkins Joseph 29.25
Jenkins Kyra 98.5
Jenkins Llewellyn 22.75
Job Shannon 19
Kasalo Mia 30.25
Kasalo Tiana 26.50
Kehoe Olivia 41.86
Kehoe Rory 33.5
Kehoe Dara 16.25
Kinghorn Rachel 35.5
Kinghorn Sarah 28.44
Kinghorn Andrew 16.25
Lally Sarah 64.25
Landrak Lexie 45.5
Landsey Peter 9
Lavers Margaret 22.75
Leafe Samuel 4.25
Leong Stephen 26.25
Lugg Ethan 22.75
Macintyre Rory 27
Maddox Mark 59.75
Maguire David 11.5
Maher Zoe 16.25
Mahon Emma 31.25
Mansfield Bruce 29.5
Marais Pieter 36.25
Mariotti Brian 45.25
Mariotti Emmett 16.25
Mason Chloe 26
Mason Greer 40.75
Mastrangelo Steven 31.75
Mastrangelo Joe 4.25
Matheson Hamish 9.5
Mathew Paul 57.23
Mathews Joel 14.25
Mavor Louise 9
McCloskey Aaron 40.75
McCloskey Jack 36
McCloskey Faye 16.25
McEwen Douglas 17
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Miklis Max 36.5
Minihane Derek 22
Morris Emilie 24.75
Muller Lukas 41.25
Munro Kate 13.75
Neighbour Mark 3
Nunn Sophia 16.5
O’Kelly Olivia 7.25
O’Neill Freya 20.75
O’Neill Jodie 22.25
O’Neill Shane 27
O’Reilly Jessica 38.5
Oxlade Claire 34.25
Parker Molly 25.75
Parren Alec 20.5
Peacock-Smith Maxine 18.5
Peake Malcolm 17.75
Perry Nicholas 21.25
Platt Chloe 18.5
Platt Edward 45.5
Purvis Joseph 22.75
Purvis James 45
Purvis Jessica 36
Ramsey-
Stewart Euan 18.75
Rees-Evans Pip 21.75
Rees-Evans Michael 48.75
Reid James 13.25
Reid Olivia 32.25
Remedios Antonio 46.5
Ribeiro Salvador 30.75
Richardson Frazer 63.17
Richardson Rose 31.75
Riordan Matthew 36
Ruane Aisling 22.75
Salier Alexandra 51.25
Serventi Sofia 11.5
Shadbolt Craig 32.25
Shea Casey 32
Silberberg Natalie 32.17
Silberberg Angela 22
Silberberg Desmond 35.5
Silvy Kevin 17
Small Xavier 36.5
Soares-Smith Lily 4.25

Stanley Lou Lou 34.75
Stewart Mark 54.25
Stewart Mia 4.25
Stirling Alexandra 42.75
Swann Phoenix 18.5
Szewczak Robert 34
Takeda Riana 30.75
Tetley Sophie 4.75
Thelosen Niels 18.5
Tinker Zeyna 17.5
Tompson Eliza 9.5
Tompson Eva 11
Townsend James 31
Townsin-Brant Oskar 16.25
Traugott Frank 56.23
Treacy-Ruane Analiese 23.25
Tucker Kathryn 29.5
Tumilty Roisin 49
Turner Scott 9.5
Tyrrell Aidan 36.5
Van de Zande Lou 9.5
Van Der Pluijm Harley 4.25
Van der Pluijm Lachlan 61.75
Van Dyck George 4.25
Van Dyck Mark 4.75
Wait Thomas 27.5
Wait Fraser 13.25
Walker Kristie 23.25
Walton Cerys 32.25
Walton Maya 29.7
Watkins Emily 22.05
Watt Ruby 22.75
Watt Jack 205.23
Wheen Liam 37
Wilde Rob 18.25
Williams Dave 23.25
Winter Emma 20
Wong Kyle 44
Woodward Chloe 39.36
Woodward Scott 22.75
Yarnell Caroline 31.75
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COVID-19
This is a section that we need to include in our 
annual report for historical reasons. It is not a 
section that we anticipated ever having to write. 
There are few events that come along in history 
that change the world at short notice and materially 
impact nearly everyone. COVID-19 is such an 
event and neither North Steyne SLSC nor its 
members were immune from its effects.

COVID-19 was first identified on 7th January 
2020. The “once in a century pandemic” had far 
reaching negative effects on world health and 
economic markets. In early 2020 there was little 
known or written about COVID-19. No one knew 
what to expect. No one knew how to behave. Life, 
as most of us knew it, was massively disrupted. It 
still is for many.

The Sydney northern beaches are renown for their 
relaxed beach culture and high numbers of tourists. 
It quickly became apparent that the pandemic 
affected the way the public and our members 
could visit our beach and surf club. Lockdown led 
to the early closure of the 113th season, a decision 
our Club Captain did not take lightly at the time.

By April 2020, as confirmed cases and deaths 
due to the coronavirus rose rapidly around the 
globe, the Australian Government enacted public 
health orders which instituted border closures and 
regional lockdowns. It was the biggest loss of civil 
liberties and freedom witnessed in Australia by 
anyone living. We were required to self-isolate, 
socially distance, wash our hands and provide our 
contact details for tracing purposes.

If we travelled to known “hot spots” we were 
required to go into self-isolation or mandatory 
quarantine. If “viral clusters” emerged we were 
asked to get tested in one of the pop-up clinics. 
We were also told to work from home.

With no vaccine available in 2020, SLSNSW and 
SLSSNB acted fast to guide our Surf Club to form 
a COVID-19 safety plan to assist with preventing 
the spread of the virus. The decision was made to 
close our entire club until the plan was completed 
and approved.

A COVID-19 Committee of Chris Stewart, 
President, Cath Hillier, Secretary, Dan Hillier, 
Club Captain and Paul Mathew, Executive Officer, 
was formed.  Cath worked closely with branch 
to ensure our club facilities and activities met 
the requirements for the COVID Safety Plan.  All 
Directors were required to  write COVID safety 
plans for activities within their portfolio and update 
then when required.

Our COVID-19 Safety Plan was detailed and 12 

pages long in fine print, and effective 1st August 
2020.  Due to the lockdowns, we did not have our 
usual end of season Awards Presentation Evening, 
and our 113th AGM was postponed until 12th 
September whereby only 30 people could attend 
in person due to social distancing rules. This led to 
a late start of this season.

A national QR code registry was established and 
mandatory signing in was required for everyone 
attending the club, by this stage our club had 
reopened but with restrictions in place. 

In late October 2020 environmental health 
managers from the Northern Sydney Public Health 
Unit visited the club to ensure we were compliant. 
In mid-November QR codes were mandatory for 
restaurants, cafes, pubs and bars across the State.

The earliest signs that this season was going to 
be far from clear and difficult to manage occurred 
around 8th September when the press stated, 
“Sydney’s beaches will be forced to close again 
over summer if crowd sizes mean COVID-19 
restrictions are flouted, local mayors and Councils 
have warned”. Images of crowded Bondi Beach 
were beamed all around the world with beachgoers 
insensitive to the spread of the virus and human 
suffering that was occurring in other parts of the 
world.

Beachgoers were also oblivious to the potential 
risk of viral spread from congregating in large 
numbers. Local Councils, including Sydney 
Northern Beaches, were quick to point out 
“that public health orders still apply to manage 
COVID-19 restrictions at beaches”. People can 
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gather in groups of up to 20 adhering to the four-
metre square rule. Individuals face maximum 
penalties of $11,000, imprisonment or on-the-spot 
fines of $1,000 for breaches. Not in my lifetime do I 
recall a time that you could be imprisoned for going 
to the beach.

In November 2020, drones were used by Surf 
Lifesaving NSW and Northern Beaches Council 
to monitor social distancing on Sydney northern 
beaches. 

The pandemic placed  a considerable 
administrative, management and economic burden 
on the club this season.  Cleaning costs dramatically 
increased due to the level of sanitisation required 
to meet safety standards.  ‘COVID Safe’ training 
was provided online for volunteers who put their 
hand up to be COVID Marshalls, hi-visibility vests 
were purchased; the supply of hand sanitiser and 
cleaning products (Hospital grade) was vigilantly 
maintained.  Signage around the club constantly 
needing updating as restricitons changed.

Every activity within the club was required to 
have a COVID-19 safety plan including Nippers, 
education courses, and youth and senior training 
sessions. Our public BBQ service, the Clubroom 
Bar, the gymnasium, IRB and board/boat sheds 
also required detailed safety plans. All this needed 
to be implemented, clearly communicated to our 
members and updated as and when required.

On 22nd November we ran a successful branch 
Nipper carnival under COVID-19 safe conditions. 
Parents were unable to congregate, effectively only 
picking up and dropping off. Events were limited 
and COVID-19 Marshalls were appointed.

Education training and assessments were also 
affected. Manikins and other equipment had to be 
wiped down and sanitised between candidates. 
Assessments were limited to 24 people and 
assessments were run within clubs rather than 
at “central venues”. In some cases, assessments 
were either cancelled or postponed, not because 
of dangerous surf conditions, but because of 
COVID-19 restrictions.

Weekend nipper 
events were also 
modified, parents were 
encouraged to become 
Age Managers as that 
way they were allowed 
to be on the beach with 
their children otherwise 
they were only allowed 
to watch from the 
promenade. Each week 
COVID-19 Marshalls 
were on duty, ensuring 
all families signed in 
for contact tracing 
purposes. 

The season was moving along nicely under 
the new “normal” when on 16 December 2020, 
Sydney Northern Beaches recorded two cases of 
COVID-19. That was the beginning of the “Avalon 
cluster” which grew rapidly and included several 
hotspots around Manly. There was considerable 
correspondence that followed from branch and 
Council. On 17th December, NSW Public Health 
recommended that residents on the Northern 
Beaches from the Spit Bridge to Palm Beach 
stay home for the next 3 days and isolate to stop 
the current COVID cluster growing further out of 
control.  

SLS Sydney Northern Beaches cancelled all surf 
sports events and education assessments that 
were scheduled for that weekend and within a day 
patrols on all 21 Sydney Northern Beaches were 
closed. Nipper events were also cancelled. North 
Steyne shut the club down and access was denied 
to all members including the gymnasium. The 
situation worsened in coming days when Sydney 
Northern Beaches was put in lockdown by creating 
a “red zone” north of Narrabeen bridge and an 
“orange zone” south to the Spit Bridge prohibiting 
anyone from entering or leaving those zones 
except for essential services.  Christmas holiday 
patrolling was observational only and patrolling 
members were excused if they were unable to 
attend due to lockdown. 

With the pandemic still unpredictable, further 
events had to be cancelled such as the Christmas 
party, the Ocean Swim and our life member and 
distinguished service function. Other events 
such as the Awards Presentation Night had to 
be postponed only days before due to another 
outbreak, thankfully it was able to be held in June.

This is the “stop-start” environment in which our 
directors, members and parents operated during 
this season. It is a testament to their organisation, 
good management, passion, commitment, and 
patience that North Steyne has been able to run 
any patrols, carnivals, activities, events and have 
as good a season as it did. North Steyne’s “can do” 
attitude was clear this season. 

We thank all our members for their patience 
and loyalty through what has been a particularly 
challenging season.

Despite those challenges it is necessary to remind 
ourselves and be respectful that we live in a beautiful 
and safe part of the world. There continues to be 
considerable loss of life and suffering during these 
unprecedented times.

To all our COVID-19 Marshalls, parents, and 
members we say, “Thank You!”.

Frank Traugott 
Secretary
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NOTICE OF THE 114TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
SEASON 2020/2021 

 

Notice is hereby given that the One Hundred and Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the North Steyne 
Surf Life Saving Club Inc. will be held online via Zoom on Sunday 8th August 2021 commencing at 11:00am. 

 
AGENDA 

1. Welcome by the President. 
2. Apologies. 
3. A minutes silence in tribute to the recent loss of members and friends within the surf lifesaving 

community. 
4. Approval of the Minutes for the 113th Annual General Meeting held on 12th September 2020. 
5. Presentation and approval of the 114th Annual Report and Financial Statements. 
6. Affiliation with SLS Sydney Northern Beaches Branch: “That affiliation be sought for the season with 

Surf Life Saving Sydney Northern Beaches Inc. (Branch). Further, that the articles, constitution, by-
laws, regulations and resolutions, together with the awards and equipment at the Branch, Surf Life 
Saving NSW and Surf Life Saving Australia Limited be accepted without limitation.” 

7. Election of Patrons, Directors (11), Assistant Directors (9), Judiciary Panel (4), Life Membership and 
Honours Panel (4), Rules Panel (4), Trustees and Auditor season 2021/2022. 

8. General business (written advice required one week prior to meeting). 

Nominations for Directors, Assistant Directors, Panels, Patrons and Trustees will be accepted in writing by 
the Secretary up until 11am on Sunday 1st August 2021. Nomination forms are available from North Steyne’s 
Administration Manager (admin@northsteyneslsc.com.au) and circulated with this notice. 

Members entitled to vote and stand for office are determined in Part 2 Section 5 of the North Steyne SLSC 
Constitution, consistent with SLSA Regulation 6.4 (to source - search SLSA Regulation 6.4and download the 
PDF). Members entitled to vote under the Regulation are Active members, Active Reserve members, Long 
Service members and Life Members who are financial members of the Club. 

Frank Traugott 
Secretary North Steyne SLSC 
0403 820 645 
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Treasurer’s Report
I am pleased to present the 2021 Financial Report 
for the North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club on 
behalf of the Board.

Despite continued challenges due to COVID-19, 
we had another good year financially.  We made 
a net profit of $47,809 (compared to $57,777 last 
season).  We also increased our total cash holdings 
by $59,594.  Our total accumulated earnings 
increased by $56,383 to $810,938 as a result of 
the net profit and the allocation to reserves for the 
Special Purpose Funds. Having a strong balance 
sheet and cash position is crucial in ensuring 
sustainability during these uncertain times.

Our total income increased from $285,525 to 
$322,307.  This increase was mainly due to an 
increase in grants and government assistance, 
which more than compensated for a reduction in 
interest received from $11,635 to $5,453.  The 
increase in grant income included total grants 
of $11,670 from Surf Life Saving NSW due to 
COVID-19 and a grant of $2,689 from Service 
NSW.  Increased revenue from hosting carnivals, 
the bar and hall rental income helped offset 
reductions in sponsorship and BBQ income.

Total expenditure increased from $227,748 to 
$274,498.  The main contributors to this increase 
were significantly higher cleaning costs due to 
COVID-19, increased salary costs (mainly as a 
result of JobKeeper top-ups), increased lifesaving 
costs and an increase in cost of goods sold for 
clothing (the later matched by an increase in 
clothing income). 

I would like to acknowledge our major 
sponsors and donations:
•	 The Federal Government for government 

assistance as a result of COVID-19;

•	 The NSW Government for a COVID-19 small 
business support grant and other grants; 

•	 The Northern Beaches Council for the Council 
Patrol Incentive Scheme grant; 

•	 Surf Life Saving NSW for COVID-19 and life 
saving equipment grants and a distribution 
from its fundraising activities;

•	 Surf Life Saving Australia for a Beach Safety 
Equipment grant;

•	 Balgowlah RSL for a grant for the Special 
Needs, Nipper and Youth programs and 
donations in respect of meat raffles;

•	 Fairfax Media for a donation in respect of 
assistance we provided for the Sun Run;

•	 Lions club of Manly for a donation in respect of 
our Special Needs program.

In addition, I would like to recognise the:

•	 NSW Government 
Department of Justice 
for the ongoing 
funding of state-wide 
operations, which 
benefit all members 
through the co-
operative agreement; 

•	 NSW Government for 
the support provided through The Office of 
Sport;

•	 Federal Government for the Beach Safety 
Equipment Funding which directed $5,000 to 
every SLSC for the purchase of vital rescue 
equipment, first aid and medical supplies;

•	 Federal Government for the VET Funding which 
enabled hundreds of assessors to update their 
training qualifications and provided clubs with 
updated training equipment including QCPR 
manikins and tablets;

•	 Emergency Volunteer Support Scheme 
(EVSS) which is funded through the 
National Partnership Agreement on Natural 
Disaster Resilience between the NSW 
and Commonwealth Government’s for 
Apply Advanced Resuscitation Techniques 
equipment;

National Sponsors of Surf Life Saving 
Australia (SLSA):

•	 In addition to Ampol branding on the sleeve 
of patrol shirts across the country, the 
partnership includes Ampol’s presence at 
major surf lifesaving events, as well as an 
activation through its retail network and 
broader infrastructure assets to promote 
surf safety messages and support surf life 
saving’s important work;

•	 DHL is a major partner of SLSA, providing 
significant uniform sponsorship to enable 
uniforms to be provided free of charge to 
patrolling lifesavers;

•	 Isuzu which provides lifesavers across 
the country with a fleet of D-MAX and 
MU-X vehicles;

•	 Westpac is a major partner of SLSA 
providing significant sponsorship towards 
the Westpac Lifesaver Rescue Helicopter 
Service, the oldest civilian search and 
rescue service in Australia;

•	 Dulux for their support of surf lifesaving;

•	 BRP is the preferred powercraft supplier 
and partner of SLSA providing surf 
lifesaving affiliated clubs and services 
with side-by-side vehicles (SSVs) and 
rescue watercraft (RWC).
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State Sponsors of Surf Life Saving New South 
Wales (SLSNSW):
•	 ClubsNSW for their support of the SLSNSW 

State Championships;

•	 Deputy is a partner of SLSNSW and ensures it 
can focus on its mission, to save lives, create 
great Australians and build better communities;

•	 Envirobank which partners with SLSNSW 
to allow surf clubs along the NSW coastline 
with the opportunity to collect and recycle 
refundable containers with the returns received 
as donations;

•	 Sharkskin are the naming rights sponsor of the 
SLSNSW IRB series; 

•	 Midford is a supporting partner and preferred 
supplier of apparel for SLSNSW teams 
and sport events including the SLSNSW 
State Championships and NSW Country 
Championships; 

•	 Dolphin Surf Craft is a preferred supplier of 
SLSNSW and are able to ensure clubs, branches 
and SLSNSW volunteer lifesavers, have access 
to equipment such as rescue boards at an 
affordable price.

Major Sponsors of Sydney Northern Beaches 
Surf Lifesaving:
•	 the International College of Management, Sydney 

(ICMS), Dee Why RSL Club, Northern Beaches 
Hospital, URM, Westfield Warringah Mall, 
Speedo, Northern Beaches Council, Brookvale 
Nissan.

I would also like to acknowledge the support of all the 
Board, Trevor Lane (the auditor), Audrey Bruen and 
Cath Hillier (the club’s Administration Managers) and 
a large number of members that have supported me 
during the year.

Tony Falzarano 
Treasurer

 

 

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 11-months  
ended 30 April 2021 

Income 
Refer to 

notes to the 
accounts: 2021 2020 

Operating income   9  117,657 120,896 
Donations & sponsorship   8 31,304 27,398 
Other fundraising activities  8 64,140 66,110 
Grants  80.253 43,486 
Government Assistance  23,500 16,000 
Interest received   5,453 11,635 
Total income   322,307 285,525 
Expenses     
Operating expenses 10 219,168 165,227 
Depreciation   7 19,874 20,201 
Fundraising activities  8 26,023 31,986 
Scholarships  6 500 1,500 
Special purpose fund allocations  6 8,933 8,834 
Total expenses   274,498 227,748 
Profit for the year  47,809 57,777 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 11-month period ended 30 April 
2021 should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following 
pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting 
period.  The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not 
directly comparable with the figures for 2021. 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2021 

Current assets 
Refer to notes 

to the 
accounts: 2021 2020 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 706,594 647,000 
Trade debtors and prepayments   21,141 24,183 
Inventory   38,711 42,097 
Total current assets   766,446 713,280 
Non-current assets     
Property, plant and equipment 7 610,497 583,894 
Less: accumulated depreciation 7 (525,116) (505,242) 
Total non-current assets   85,381 78,652 
Total assets   851,827 791,932 
Current Liabilities     
Trade creditors and accruals  35,909 18,133 

Deferred Income  4,980 19,244 
Total current liabilities   40,889 37,377 
Total liabilities   40,889 37,377 
Net assets   810,938 754,555 
Accumulated funds     
Special purpose funds 6 232,172 223,239 
Retained earnings    531,316 473,494 
Prior year adjustment    (359) 45 
Current year earnings   47,809 57,777 
Total accumulated earnings   810,938 754,555 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 11-month period ended 30 April 
2021 should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following 
pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting 
period.  The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not 
directly comparable with the figures for 2021.  
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Statement of Cash Flows for the 11-month period 
 ended 30 April 2021 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Refer to 

notes to the 
accounts: 2021 2020 

Cash receipts in the course of 
operations   305,566 353,026 
Cash payments in the course of 
operations  (225,186) (198,324) 
Net cash flow from operating 
activities  11 80,380 154,702 
Cash flows from investing activities     
Receipt from sale of equipment   364 13,637 
Payment for plant and equipment  (26,603) (39,981) 
Interest received    5,453 11,635 
Net cash flow from investing 
activities   (20,786) (14,710) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash flow 

  
59,594 139,992 

Cash at beginning of the year 5  647,000 507,008 
Cash at the end of the year 5 706,594 647,000 
Net change in cash held   59,594 139,992 

  

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 11-month period ended 30 April 
2021 should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the 
following pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting 
period.  The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not 
directly comparable with the figures for 2021. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for  
the 11-month period ended 30 April 2021 

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
The following explains the significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, such accounting policies were 
also adopted in the corresponding reporting period. 
 

General 
 

The financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the 
financial report preparation requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission and Charitable Fundraising Act. The board has determined that the club is not a 
reporting entity. North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc is a not-for-profit entity for the purpose 
of preparing the financial statements. 
 
The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Division 60 
of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the following specific 
accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, 
have been adopted in the preparation of this report. 
 
Basis of accounting 
 
The statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historic costs and 
do not take into account changing money values, or, except where stated, current valuations 
of non-current assets. 
 
Registration fees 
 
All registration fees are bought to account in the year to which they apply as and when 
received from the members. The capitation fees, due to Surf Life Saving New South Wales 
Inc and Sydney Northern Beaches Surf Life Saving, are remitted as and when invoiced and 
shown as a separate expenditure item. 
 
Donations and sponsorship income 
 
Donations & sponsorship income is recognised when amounts are received or receivable. 
 
Grants 
 
Grants are recognised in the same period as the related expense or asset is recognised.  
Grants received in advance are shown as deferred income. COVID grants were received in 
the 2021 year from Surf Life Saving New South Wales Inc and Northern Beaches Council. 
 
Government Assistance 
 
Government assistance represents the Boosting Cash Flow and JobKeeper payments 
received in response to COVID-19. 
 
Cash at bank 
 
Cash at bank and term deposits represents monies deposited with the Commonwealth Bank 
of Australia and Bank of Queensland.  
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Inventories 
 
Inventories have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
 

i. Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, independent of directors’ valuations. 
All assets are depreciated over their useful life 

 
ii. Over the years, the club has collected considerable memorabilia. These memorabilia 

were originally recorded at a nominal value but has subsequently been fully depreciated 
to zero - hence the financial accounts do not ascribe any value to memorabilia assets 

 
iii. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 

profit and loss as incurred 
 

iv. Depreciation rates used for each major class of asset are: 
 

Asset class Depreciation % 
Bar equipment 15.00% 
BBQ equipment 33.33% 
Boards and skis 33.33% 
Gymnasium 
equipment 10.00% 

IRB & motors 20.00% 
IT equipment and 
televisions 33.33% 

Lifesaving 
equipment 25.00% 

Lockers 10.00% 
Office fit-out 10.00% 
Surfboats and oars 16.67% 

 
Note 2 – Related parties 
 
Transactions with committee members or their committee-member related entity occurred within 
a normal member or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable that those 
which it is reasonable to expect that the entity would have adopted if dealing with the committee 
member or their committee-member at arms-length in the same circumstance. 
 
Note 3 – Segment information 
 
The club derives revenue primarily from its members, sponsors and fundraising activities to 
support its role in providing beach life saving services and operations. The club’s activities are 
principally carried out at North Steyne Beach, located in NSW. 
 
Note 4 – Subsequent events 
 
The continuing COVID-19 pandemic and related restrictions will impact our operations due to 
government mandated compliance requirements and additional WHS measures. It is expected 
that revenue will also be impacted across a number of areas. 
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Our Lifesaving Services Agreement is on similar terms and levels as this past season and we 
continue to operate under the same terms and conditions as per our license agreement, now 
expired. 
 
Note 5 – Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows, is reconciled to 
the related item in the statement of financial positions. It includes both cash at hand and monies 
at bank and represented here: 
 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
  2021 2020 
Cash on hand 950 945  
Cash at bank 232,241 176,440 
Bank term deposit 473,403 469,615 
Account balance 706,594 647,000 

 
Note 6 – Special purpose funds 
 
The Future Fund had its origins through donations and bequests made to the club. Its purpose is 
to provide a future means of funding and promoting surf lifesaving including purchases of 
lifesaving equipment and endeavours designed to encourage members in gaining surf lifesaving 
skills.  The Building Fund receives donations and grants specifically for club building projects. 
 

Reconciliation of special purpose funds (including Building Fund) 
  2021 2020 
Opening balance 223,239 214,405 
Contributions made in year 7,255 5,453 
Interest earned 2,178 4,881 
Expenditure (500) (1,500) 
Account balance 232,172 223,239 

 
  

Audited Financial Statements continued...
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Note 7 – Property, plant and equipment 
 

Asset and depreciation reconciliation 

Assets 
Boards & 

skis 
Furniture 
& fittings Gym 

IRB & 
motors IT 

Life 
saving  

Surfboat
s & 

trailers Total 
Prior 

year total 
Balance 
–  
1st June 
2020 152,180 145,432 41,992 101,238 4,830 70,782 67,440 583,894 573,087 

Additions 2,696 9,960  8,595 316  5,035 26,602 39,981 

Disposals         (29,174) 
Total 
asset 
balance –  
30th April 
2020 154,876 155,392 41,992 109,833 5,146 70,782 72,475 610,497 583,894 
Depreciat
ion                   
Balance 
–  
1st June 
2020 (145,775) (129,742) (40,039) (80,293) (4,830) (68,103) (36,460) (505,242) (506,841) 

Disposals         21,800 
Depreciati
on (5,076) (5,673) (425) (725)  (1,175) (6,800) (19,874) (20,201) 
Balance 
–  
30th 
April 
2021 (150,851) (135,415) (40,464) (81,018) (4,830) (69,278) (43,260) (525,116) (505,242) 
Net asset 
balance –  
30th April 
2021 4,025 19,977 1,528 28,815 316 1,504 29,215 85,381 78,652 

 
 
Note 8 – Fundraising statement for the 11-month period ended 30 April 2021 
 
Funds were provided through the following activities and events: 
 

Type of fundraising Income Expenses 
Net surplus/ 
(loss) 2021 

Prior year 
total 

Donations and sponsorships 31,304 0 31,304 27,398 
BBQ 30,441 15,968 14,473 16,836 
Bar 10,928 3,258 7,670 4,389 
Boat Carnival hosting 9,828 515 9,313  5,625 
Branch Carnival hosting 1,795 0 1,795  0 
Nipper Carnival hosting 4,722 849 3,873 5,283 
Ocean swim 0 5,434 (5,434) 817 
Hall Income 6,029 0 6,029 0 
Raffles 397 0 397 1,174 
Total 95,444 26,023 69,421 61,522 

 
 
Note The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting period.  

The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 
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Income from fundraising was applied to the following club functions and activities: 
 

 

 

Note 9 – Operating income 
 

 2021 2020 
Membership 65,418 66,836 

Clothing and merchandise sales 23,601 11,811 
Rental income (Surf School & Surfcam) 20,559 22,097 
Competition 4,037 4,796 
Training and education 3,678 8,910 
Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets 0 6,263 
Sundry income 364 181 

Total operating income 117,657 120,896 
 
Note The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting period.  

The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 

 
Note 10 – Operating expenses 
 

 2021 2020 
Administration 13,589 21,492 
Administrator Employee costs 33,274 22,628 
Capitation 20,511 20,431 
Cleaning 22,394 644 
Clothing 25,447 12,351 
Competition 36,236 34,740 
Education 6,726 4,605 
Insurance 6,320 5,708 
Lifesaving 23,316 13,107 
Repairs and maintenance   13,517 12,036 

Ripper Nippers 12,469 7,510 
Utilities 5,369 9,975 
Total operating expenses 219,168 165,227 

 

Application of fundraising income during year Amount 
Administration 13,589 
Administration Employee costs 10,896 
Competition 32,199 
Education 1,048 
Insurance 6,320 
Utilities 5,369 
Total 69,421 
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Note The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting period.  
The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 

 
Note 11 – Cash flow information 

 
Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net profit 
 
 2021 2020 

Profit for the year 

Adjust for non-cash items 

Depreciation  

Profit on sale of fixed assets 

Special funds movement 

47,809 

 

19,874 

- 

8,933 

57,777 

 

20,201 

(6,263) 

8,835 

Sub-total 

Less interest received. Shown separately in cash 
flows from investing activities 

Less sale of boards. Shown separately in cash flows 
from investing activities 

76,616 

(5,453) 
 

(364) 

80,550 

(11,635) 
 

0 
 

Cash flow before movement in trade debtors, 
inventory and trade creditors  

Movement in 

Trade debtors – decrease 

Inventory – decrease/(increase) 

Trade creditors – increase 

Deferred Income – decrease 

Prior year adjustment 

70,799 
 

 

3,042 

3,386 

17,776 

(14,264) 

(359) 

68,915 

 

 
85,399 

(13,236) 

13,579 

0 

45 

Net cash flow from operating activities 80,380 154,702 
 
Note The reporting period end date was changed from 31 May to 30 April this reporting period.  

The figures shown for 2020 are for a 12-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  
To the Members of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc.  
 

Opinion  
 
I have audited the financial report of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc., (“the Club”), which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2021, the statement of comprehensive income and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies, and the statement of members of the committee.   
 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Club is in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:  
 

a) giving a true and fair view of the Club’s financial position as at 30 April 2021 and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and  

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and Division 60 
of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 

 
I also report that in accordance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Charitable Fundraising 
Regulations. 
 

a) the accounting and associated records have been properly kept during the year. 
b) monies received as a result of fundraising appeals conducted during the year have been properly 

accounted for and applied; and 
c) at the date of this report there are reasonable grounds to believe the club will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they fall due. 
 

Basis for Opinion  
 
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section 
of my report. I am independent of the Club in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (“the Code”) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled 
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  
 
I confirm that the independence declaration required by Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012, which has been given to the directors, would be in the same terms if given as 
at the time of this auditor’s report.  
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.  
 
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting  
 
I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report 
has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the financial reporting responsibilities under the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.  As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for 
another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
 
Responsibilities of Management and the Directors’ for the Financial Report 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the special purpose financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards in accordance with the Australian 
Charities and Not-for profits Commission Regulations 2013, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012, the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Charitable Fundraising Regulations and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report 
that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the special purpose financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
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concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Club or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The directors of the Club are responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.  

 
I communicate with the directors regarding among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my 
audit.  
 
I also provide the directors with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
Independence 
 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. 

 
Trevor Lane FCA 
Chartered Accountant  
Honorary Auditor 
 
Date 20th July 2021 
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Statement by Principal Officers of the Board 

 
 

This declaration is made in accordance with the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the 
Charitable Fundraising Regulations. 
 
The Board of the North Steyne Surf Living Saving Club Inc. had determined that the club is not a 
reporting entity and that the special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with 
accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, the financial report as set out in the preceding pages: 

 
1. Presents a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club 

Inc. as at 30 April 2021 and performance for the 11-months ended on that date with respect 
to fundraising appeals; 
 

2. The provision of the Act, the Regulations under the Act and the conditions attached to the 
fundraising authority have been complied with by the club; 
 

3. The internal controls exercised by the club are appropriate and effective in accounting for all 
income received and applied by the club from its fundraising activities; 
 

4. At the dates of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that North Steyne 
Surf Life Saving Club Inc. will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable; and 
 

5. The financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. 
 

This declaration is made in accordance with sub-section 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-
for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 

 
Chris Stewart, President 
 
 
  
 
 
Tony Falzarano, Treasurer 
 
 
Dated     20th July, 2021 



Year	 Event	 Names
1999-2000	 50-54 Beach Sprint	 P Crombie
1999-2000	 130+ Beach Relay Team	 P Crombie, P Gilmore, C Kearney					   

Australian Champions
Year	 Event	 Names
1908-09	 Premiers (R & R)	 R McKelvey, C Bell, G Millar, J Vernon, O Merrett, LV Hind, A Currie

1909-10	 Premiers (R & R)	 A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell

1910-11	 Premiers (R & R)	 A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell

1919-20	 Premiers (R & R)	 L Hind, A Davis, A Hodge, W Keith, H Middleton, E Whitehead

	 Open Belt	 F Lough

1920-21	 Premiers (R & R)	 L Hind, H Evans, A Davis, N Lister, E Whitehead, H Middleton

	 Open Boat	 E Wigney, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn

	 Beach Sprint	 J Waterer

1921-22	 Open Boat	 H Evans, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn

	 Open Surf	 AL Davis

	 Resuscitation	 R Kidman, G Riddington

1922-23	 Junior Surf	 R Nicholls

1923-24	 Junior Surf	 D Thompson

	 Open Boat	 H Evans, E Saunders, P Mazlin, O Stephenson, F Stewart

	 Beach Sprint	 J Waterer

	 Beach Relay	 J Waterer, H Gorfin, C Whitehead, E Whitehead

1925-26	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, P Mazlin, O Stephenson

	 Junior Boat	 S Kelly, A Wise, E Ireland, H Morgan, L Waterer

1926-27	 Premiers (R & R)	 G Bland, D Thompson, O Ryan, G Boulton, D Riddington, E Whitehead

	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazelin, G Moat, F Bridges

1928-29	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, F Bridges, F Vaughan

1929-30	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazlin, J Milne, M Vaughan

	 Beach Sprint	 R Conn

1930-31	 Beach Relay	 R Conn, N Walters, J Carter, J Gosson

1932-33	 Beach Relay	 D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, J Megson

1933-34	 Beach Relay	 D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, R Geary

1938-39	 Premiers (R & R)	 E Morgan, S Paton, A Owen, W Furey, R Mullumby, B Lilley, A Durrell, G Souter

1940-41	 Junior Belt	 IK Kennington

1945-46	 Junior R & R	 A Coore, B Smith, D Page, J Ashley, D Stewart, G Anderson, D Anderson

	 Junior Teams	 J Ashley, A Coore, B Smith, B Hawkeswood

	 Junior Surf	 J Ashley

	 Junior Belt	 A Coore

1963-64	 Junior R & R	 A Kennington, G Day, A Simon, G Murcutt, G Maloney, E Wise,  
		  P Tocchini, I Byrne, T O’Donnell

1986-87	 Junior Flags	 G Monckton

	 Junior Relay	 G Monckton, A O’Dwyer, A Pettit, D Nable, P Hogg

1989-90	 Open Boat	 R Burgess, D O’Shannassy, D Hoy, A Watt, A Hayward

2005-06	 u19 Female Beach Sprint	 Charlotte Van Veenendaal

2005-06	 u19 Female Beach Relay	 Charlotte Van Veenendaal, Erin Lee, Annabelle Ewen, Alice Wilson

2009-10	 Masters 40-44 2km Run	 Kevin Ferry

2013-14	 u17 Female Champion Lifesaver	 Courtney Sloan

2013-14	 Open First Aid Team	 Melissa Clark, Joseph Mastrangelo III

2015-16	 u19 Female Champion Lifesaver	 Courtney Sloan

2020-21	 Masters Champion Lifesaver	 Shannon Job

World Champions
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Life Members
Keith	 Abraham
Bernard	 Burrows
Jonathan Colwell
Keith	 Crampton
Paul	 Day
Simon	 Fry
Shan	 Grose
Paul	 Hull
Trevor	 Lane
Paul	 Mathew
Arthur	 McCarroll
Ronald	 Morton
Damian	O’Shannassy
Garry	 O’Sullivan
Nicholas Roelvink
Peter	 St John
Colin	 Stanford
John	 Sutherland

Award Members
lisa	 Anese
Chris	 Dooley
Michael	Jenkins
Geoffrey Kinghorn
Derek	 Minihane

Active Reserve
Richard	Donaldson
Hamish	Matheson
Douglas McEwen
Maxine	Peacock-Smith
Malcolm Peake

Honorary Members
Dixie Foord
Kim Peacock-Smith
Jack Riisfeldt

Long Service
John	 Anderson
Mark	 Ballesty
Ross	 Birch
Peter	 Chapman
Deborah Foote
Timothy	Fry
Darren	 Gore
Robyn	 Humphrey
Shannon Job
Peter	 Landsey
Gordon	Lang
David	 Maguire
Joe	 Mastrangelo
William	McLerie
Todd	 Moore
Kate	 Munro
Mark	 Neighbour
William	O’Brien
Peter	 Rogers

Rubin	 Ruzicka
Alexandra Salier
Paul	 Thomson
Adam	 Traugott

Active Senior
Michael	Altenburger
Max	 Amen
Margaret Barbouttis
Stephen Basil-Jones
Julia	 Bell
Matthew Benns
Michael	Bernerius
Kai	 Brandson
Roger	 Brant
Jeffrey	 Brown
Mark	 Burns
Colleen	Button
Malcolm Chapman
Rebecca Chaman
Erin	 Colwell
Joanne	Cooper
Ewan	 Cooper-Frater
David	 Cowell
Oscar	 Cowell
Stuart	 Crofton
Danielle Edwards
Sophie	 Egden
Ella	 Falzarano
Shaun	 Falzarano
Tonino	 Falzarano
Daniel	 Flynn
Jodie	 Frazer
Matthew Garling
Matthew Gertenbach
Daniel	 Gibbeson
Christine Gibbs Stewart
Danny	 Gompes
Luke	 Gordon
Nick	 Greenhalgh
David	 Guthrie
Mechelle Hare
Tracey	 Hare-Boyd
Trae	 Hare-Boyd
Piers	 Haskard
James	 Hassell
Chris	 Haughton
David	 Hearn
Kirk	 Henzlik
Daniel	 Hillier
Emma	 Hillier
Jonathan Holman
Anthony Howell
Kyra	 Jenkins
Llewellyn Jenkins
Sarah	 Lally
Margaret Lavers
Samuel	Leafe
Stephen Leong

Rory	 Macintyre
Mark	 Maddox
Bruce	 Mansfield
Brian	 Mariotti
Steven	 Mastrangelo
Louise	 Mavor
Jack	 McCloskey
Christopher Morgan
Shane	 O’Neill
Claire	 Oxlade
Molly	 Parker
Nicholas Perry
Fernando Pinto
Chloe	 Platt
Edward	Platt
James	 Purvis
Jessica	Purvis
Euan	 Ramsey-Stewart
Nicholas Reed 
Michael	Rees-Evans
Michael	Reidy
Salvador Ribeiro
Matthew Riordan
Aisling	 Ruane
Craig	 Shadbolt
Angela	 Silberberg
Desmond Silberberg
Kevin	 Silvy
Lily	 Soares-Smith
Lou Lou Stanley
Mark	 Stewart
Mia	 Stewart
Alexandra Stirling
Robert	 Szewcak
Riana	 Takeda
Niels	 Thelosen
Zeyna	 Tinker
James	 Townsend
Frank	 Traugott
Analiese Treacy-Ruane
Roisin	 Tumilty
Scott	 Turner
David	 Unicomb
Lachlan	Van der Pluijm
George	Van Dyck
Mark	 Van Dyck
Thomas Wait
Kristie	 Walker
Jack	 Watt
Rob	 Wilde
Dave	 Williams
Gregory Windsham
Gus	 Wong
Kyle	 Wong
Scott	 Woodward
Caroline Yarnell

Active 15 – 18 years
Hunter	 Auld
Maya	 Auld
Ignacio	Aylwin
Emily	 Barrelle
James	 Barrelle
James	 Bellenger
Lachlan	Bennett
Joshua	Birley
Matthew Birley
Findlay	Black
Holly	 Butler
Andrew	Chatfield 
Emilia	 Cimino
Hanna	 Clare
William	Collins 
Hugh	 Davidson
Luka	 Delaney 
Ella	 Doughty
Ross	 Downey
Evie	 Farrell
Sean	 Farrell
Annabel Filmer
Rory	 Fletcher
Aidan	 Ford
Dylan	 Ford
Jennifer Grant
Cameron Griffith
Toby	 Griffiths
Thomas Hamer
Sam	 Harrington
Caitlin	 Heffernan
Jack	 Herbert
Peter	 Herbert
Abbey	 Hillier
Ned	 Hillier
Harrison Hogan
Clare	 Housego
Joseph	Jenkins
Olivia	 Kehoe
Rory	 Kehoe
Rachel	 Kinghorn
Sarah	 Kinghorn
Lexie	 Landrak
Zoe	 Landrak
Ethan	 Lugg
Emma	 Mahon
Pieter	 Marais
Chloe	 Mason 
Greer	 Mason
Joel	 Mathews
Aaron	 McCloskey
Thomas McCloskey
Max	 Miklis
Chris	 Mulham
Lukas	 Muller
Kate	 Neville 
Freya	 O’Neill
Jodie	 O’Neill
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Jessica	O’Reilly
Joseph	Purvis
Pip	 Rees-Evans
James	 Reid
Olivia	 Reid
Antonio	Remedios
Frazer	 Richardson
Rose	 Richardson
Casey	 Shea
Natalie	 Silberberg
Lachlan Simpkins
Xavier	 Small 
Phoenix Swann
Sophie	 Tetley
Eliza	 Tompson
Kathryn	Tucker
Aidan	 Tyrrell
Jasmine Unicomb 
Harley Van Der Pluijm
Fraser	 Wait
Cerys	 Walton
Maya	 Walton
Emily	 Watkins
Ruby	 Watt
Liam	 Wheen 
Chloe	 Woodward

Associate General 
Scott	 Abbott
Peter	 Aked
Michael	Allen
Andreas Anderhov
Gina	 Anderhov
Susan	 Baatenburg De Jong
Wietse	 Baatenburg De Jong
Daniel	 Badstue
Joscelyn Baker
Robert	 Baker
Nigel	 Barriscale
Keryn	 Bayliss
Daniel	 Bekis
Louise	 Bekis
Robin	 Bell
Bas	 Breure
Matthew Brocklehurst
David	 Brooks
Brad	 Burden
Hillary	 Burrows
Barbara	 Campos
Kenneth Carmichael
Murray	 Chatfied
James	 Cheng
Luke	 Cheng
Norm	 Chow
Evana Christofides
Michael Christofides
John	 Clarson
Lisa	 Cocks
Natalie	 Coen

Paul	 Cole
Amanda Collins
Brad	 Collins
Alex	 Collinson
Cecily	 Conroy
Bronwyn Cooke
Jeffrey	 Coote
Samuel Cowell
Janell	 Cowell
Shane	 Creamer
Yoan	 Creamer
Matthew Crossley
Roberto	 Davey
Tom	 Davidson
Kris	 De Laine
Pierre	 De Laine
Fiona	 De St Germain
Alice	 Deady
Heber	 Delaney
Rita	 Delmar
Emeric	 Dequidt
Ashley	 Donaldson
Holly	 Doran
Lesley	 Dudzicki
Jo	 Duncan
Keir	 Duncan
Sarkis	 Elia
Jeremy	Elliott
Lucy	 Elliott
Mark	 Ellis
Richard	Ellis
Enid	 Eslick
Guy	 Eslick
Janice	 Faaolatane
Sarah	 Falzarano
Eliza	 Faulk
Paul	 Fishburn
Peter	 Frater
Eleanor	Fuller
Benoit	 Gaudreault
Michael	Goldsworthy
Ruth	 Goodall
Fiona	 Goodland
Matthew Gower
John	 Gray
Simon	 Greening
Angela Greenwood
Maureen Grose
Charles	Halloway
Gary	 Hance
Louise	 Hance
Stephen Hanson
Sascha	Harms
Giles	 Haynes
Nici	 Haynes
Camilla	Hayson
Dan	 Healey
Jacqui	 Heazlewood
Robin	 Herbert

Kate	 Herfort
Simon	 Herfort
Cath	 Hillier
Ken Hoetmer
Meaghan Hoetmer
David	 Howard
Alexandra Howell
Rebecca Huang
Ralph	 Hudson
Penelope Huisman
Emma	 Hurt
Kahori	 Inoue
Kate	 Isaacs
Josephine James
Diana	 Jenkins
Judith	 Jenkins
Faye	 Jenner
Christine Jones
Xanthe	 Jones
Alain	 Junkermann
Christopher Kane
Osamu	Kanezaki
Orla	 Keane
Kevin	 Kehoe
Peta	 Kilgour
Lisa	 Kinghorn
Mick	 Kirchner
Martin	 Lam
Ronny	 Lan
Mark	 Lancaster
Nicola	 Lasorsa
Kathy	 Lau
Timothy	Laurence
Bjorn	 Leffler
Monica	Leffler
Charles	Leung
Fernando Lulli
Ronan	 Maguire
Brendan Maher
Danita	 Maisey
David	 Maisey
Anna	 Manchee
Alfredo	 Martinez
Jenny	 Maurice
Anna	 Mccready
Justina McClean
Toby	 McGrath
Steve	 McMahon
Andre	 Migliari
Tom	 Monk
Uuli-Heivi Moran
Jeff	 Morris
Jason	 Mulrooney
Shannon Murdoch
Andrew	Murphy
Karen Neville
Wayne Neville
Christian Nicolussi
Andrew	O’Farrell

Tansy	 O’Farrell
Harmony Osborne
Mark	 Osborne
Ghislaine Park 
Mike	 Parker-Brown
Nicola	 Parren
Shaun	 Parren
Alastair	Pennie
Carl	 Petch
Dianne	 Phillips
Patrick	 Phillips
Donna	 Pinto
David	 Port
Neasa	 Power
Rebecca Power
Megan	 Pusterla
Janelle	 Raffe
Gareth	 Ratcliffe
Karen	 Ratcliffe
Claire	 Reed
Myra	 Reid
Simon	 Reid
Steven	 Rice
Cameron Richardson
David	 Richardson
Kristi	 Riordan
Hailey	 Rivera
Yoan	 Rizelia
Chris	 Robinson 
Douglas Rogerson
Marianne Rogerson
Susie	 Rutherford
Akari	 Sakauchi
Belinda	Sanderson
Michelle Sas
Janelle	 Scarr
Elise	 Shaw
Lydia	 Shelly
Craig	 Shortus
Pauline	Shuttleworth
Robb	 Simpson
Daniel	 Smith
Tania	 Southwell
Courtney Statos
Lee	 Steadman
Belinda	Stenstrom
Van	 Stewart
Evan	 Tancred
Emma	 Ten Kate
Emma	 Thomas
Jennifer	Thomas
Melanie	Thomas
Martin	 Thompson
Mia	 Thompson
Alison	 Totterdell
Simon	 Totterdell
Joseph 	Tremblay
Jennifer	 Blank Tremblay
Beth	 Uherek
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Karen	 Ure
Roger	 van de Zande
Pia	 Van Parys
Carolina van Selm
Dom	 Velci
Jacqui	 Vicario
Leonardo Vidal
Matthew Walker
Shani	 Walton
Stephen Walton
David	 Watkins
Geoff	 Williams
Olive	 Williams
Sam	 Willis
Angela	 Winter
Anthony Wong
David	 Wooder
Claire	 Wylie
Yuan	 Zhou	

Nippers U6
Lachlan	Bekis
William	Bourke
Genevieve Brady
Mac	 Burden
Olivia	 Cai
Sonny	 Cheng
Marlow	Davey
Ava	 Elia
Lily	 Elliott
Ayla	 Fuller
Mia-Reece Glass
Francesca Greening
India	 Grose
Charlie	 Harvey
Israel	 Haynes
Sam	 Herfort
Bowie	 Howell
Peter	 James
Grace	 Jensen
Coralie	 Kane
Finley	 Knight-Cheng
Mali	 Lalauze
Imogen	Lam
Summer Leung
Evelina	Monk
Sean	 Omondi
Delilah	 Port
Saya	 Raffe
Innes	 Reid
Eloise	 Ryan
Ivy	 Thompson

Nippers U7
Finn	 Breure
Amelia	 Carroll
Mia	 Carroll
Lea	 Creamer
Heidi	 Doyle
Hannah	Fishburn

Zara	 Hance
Saskia	 Howell
Atticus	 Jenkins
Victoria	Kirchner
Fredrik	 Leffler
Annaliese Lulli
Riley	 Lyons
Riley	 Maisey
Elizabeth Manchee
Cooper	McGrath
Patrick	 McMahon
Sacha	 Millaire
Thomas Mulham
Flynn	 Peak
Zoey	 Poos
Milan	 Rivera
Albert	 Salvador
Freya	 Sanderson
Freya	 Shadbolt
Scout	 Simpson
Betsy	 Smith
Paige	 Steadman
Noa	 Summerville-Hind
Leon	 Van Parys
Angus	 Willis
Ella	 Wilson
Leo	 Wooder
Sophia	 Zhang

Nippers U8
Jack	 Abbott
Amelia	 Aked
Zack	 Anderhov
Lochlan	Baker
Miles	 Barriscale
Kseniya	Bilonozhko
Charlie	 Burke
Jordan	 Chow
Emily	 Cocks
Hugo	 Collins
Charlotte Collinson
Jackson Conroy
Sarah	 Couroumah
Beatrice Crossley
Amandine Dequidt
Archer	 Donaldson
Roscoe	Douglas-Hill
Isabelle	Ellis
Leo	 Ellis
Eloise	 Eslick
Ebony	 Fuller
Louis	 Gibbeson
Ethan	 Goldsworthy
Nina	 Gower
Evie	 Grzanka
Jack	 Healey
Eilidh	 Home
Arcadia	Jones
Matilda	Kane
Charlie	 Kramer

Eva	 Kulkarni
Louis	 Lalauze
Robbie	 Lan
Evelyn	 Lulli
Jackson McGrath
Nina	 Merrick
Bernardo Migliari
Milly	 Monaghan
Declan	 Mulrooney
Evie	 Nicolussi
Kiana	 O’Farrell
Max	 Osborne
Dylan	 Paterson
Flori	 Pennie
Sylvie	 Petch
Edward	Reed
Carter	 Richardson
Xander	Rogerson
Erina	 Sakauchi
Georgia	Statos
Amelie	 Strobel
Olivia	 Taylor
Myka	 Totterdell
Isabel	 Tremblay
Jonah	 Walker
Erin	 Williams
James	 Xin

Nippers U9
Lucas	 Bell
Isabella	Brown
Emily	 Burns
Addison Burrows
Travis	 Cai
Daniel	 Chatfied
Josephine Clarson
Finley	 Coen
Joel	 Colwell
Sofia	 Coote
Liam	 Creamer
Ernst	 Dekke
Archie	 Doyle
Aoife	 Dudzicki
Jesse	 Duncan
Elias	 Elia
Oscar	 Elliott
Camilla	Ellis
Camila	 Fowler
Samuel	Galt
Philippa	Gates
Jack	 Goodland
Eden	 Grose
Lauren	 Grose
Charlie	 Herfort
Sofia	 Hoetmer
Max	 Howard
Ella	 Isaacs
Tristan Junkermann
Hayato	 Kanezaki
Kyra	 Kirchner

Zoe	 Lancaster
Isabella	Lasorsa
Jacob Lee
Michael	Leffler
Aiden	 Leung
Summer Maurice
Olivia	 Murdoch-Smith
Olivia	 Murphy
Elsie	 Olivier
Noah	 Parker
Ruby	 Phillips
Mel William	 Pintainho
Aria	 Pinto
Evie	 Port
Morgan	Pritchard
Natalie	 Rice
John	 Riordan
David	 Robinson
Joel	 Robinson
Cillian	 Ruane
Amelie	 Ryan
Helena	 Stenstrom
Emilie	 Thomas
James	 Velcic
Julie	 Vidal
Zoe	 Willis
Aaron	 Wooder
Joshua	Wortel

Nippers U10
Noah	 Aboushabana Shelly
Mia	 Allen
Zoe	 Anderhov
Magdalena Aylwin
Noor	 Baatenburg De Jong
Caden	 Badstue
Lara	 Baker
Jessica	Bekis
Aidan	 Bell
Samuel	Cole
Harvey	 Collins
Charlie	 Conroy
Orlando	 Cooke
Millicent Crofton
Bronte	 De Laine
Sofia	 Delmar
Cassandre Dequidt
Mia	 Falzarano
Zach	 Gibbeson
Emma	 Greenhalgh
Jasmine Greenhalgh
Sasha	 Grishin
Amelie	 Guthrie
Imogen	Hance
Zoe	 Hanson
Awa	 Harms
Mia	 Haughton
Isabel	 Hoetmer
Inigo	 Jenkins
Emma	 Kramer
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Zoe	 Kulkarni
Michael	Love
Alana	 Lulli
Ciara	 Maguire
Ahaana	Mahale
Amairah Mahale
Harper	 Maisey
Chloe	 McGrath
Evie	 Mulrooney
Sonny	 Nicolussi
Jessica	Osborne
Josephine Park
Luca	 Pinto
Darcey	 Reed
Gretsie	Robinson
Jaime	 Rogerson
Joel	 Shaw
Max	 Steadman
Felix	 Stephens
Floris	 Van Parys
Conor	 Williams

Nippers U11
William	Atkinson
Thomas Bell
Abigail	 Burns
Kody	 Burrows
Thomas Crofton
Thomas Dalton
Max	 Delaney
Libbie	 Duncan
Isaac	 Eslick
Natalia	 Fowler
Lucy	 Galt
Georgia	Gray
Frankie	Hayson
Logan	 Home
Allen	 James
Charlie	 Kehoe
Sophie	 Maher
Leonel	 Martinez
Domenica Mason
Emily	 Murphy
Emma	 Nielsen
Gemma	O’Farrell
Sienna	 Omondi
Rory	 Pennie
Kal	 Reid
Abigail	 Riordan
Larissa	Shortus
Saskia	 Shortus
Michael	Sitaramayya
Lukas	 Townsin-Brant
Daniel	 Velcic
Ava	 Willis
Chenyang Zhang

Nippers U12
Hugh	 Barriscale
Kiki	 Breure

Jazmine Carmichael
Isabel	 Churchman
Sienna	 Cole
Charlie	 Colwell
Olivka	 Gates
Leo	 Gibbeson
Zara	 Harrington
Eva	 Haughton
Chloe	 Howard
Zara	 Isaacs
Olive	 Klugsberger
Sophie	 Lasorsa
Reef	 Maurice
Oisin	 Morris
Sarah	 Rice
Heidi	 Robinson
Charlotte Robinson
Joshua	Robinson
Beanon	Ruane
Ambra	 Serventi
Brie	 Shaw
Brigid	 Tompson
Josh	 Turner
Oliver	 Uherek
Sofie	 Uherek
Keet	 Van de Zande
Charlotte Walker
Jack	 Winter

Nippers U13
Mees	 Baatenburg De Jong
Ishvar	 Barani
Orla	 Casserly
Cameron Davidson
Amelia	 De Laine
Monet	 Delmar
Capucine Dequidt
Samantha Dutton
Chloe	 Errington
Phoebe	Errington
Eliza	 Gray
Olivia	 Halloway
Mabel	 James
Issac Lee
Natasha Martinez
Kaea	 Phillips
Daisy	 Ratcliffe
Katherine Riordan
Taylor	 Roberts
Charles	Stenstrom
Harry	 Wilde
Brendan Williams
Dann	 Wilson 

Nippers U14
Cillian	 Barriscale
Francesca Brady
Isabelle	Breure
Clara	 Brocklehurst
Isabella	Carmichael

Harriet	 Carmichael
Samuel	Chubb
Oliver	 Crofton
Jai	 Delaney
Marielle	Eslick
Charlotte Faulk
Alice	 Galt
Neneh	 Hanson
Geoffrey Herbert
Thomas Hudson
Sam	 Isaacs
Dara	 Kehoe
Andrew	Kinghorn
Lachlan	Knight
Zoe	 Maher
Emmett	Mariotti
Faye	 McCloskey
Emilie	 Morris
Sophia	 Nunn
Olivia	 O’Kelly
Alec	 Parren
Sofia	 Serventi
Eva	 Tompson
Oskar	 Townsin-Brant
Daniel	 Unicomb
Lou	 van de Zande
Emma	 Winter
Brigitte	 Wylie



List of Executives 1907 - 1956

Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor

07-08 R Arthur MLA WH Commins WJ Bland CD Patterson GH Williams

08-09 R Arthur MLA SAE Wigney WG Fisher CD Patterson HD Spyer
09-10 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell HF Watson CD Patterson A Neale
10-11 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell KV Holmes CD Patterson OGH Merrett
11-12 CD Patterson EMV Shemwell KV Holmes OGH Merrett
12-13 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett
13-14 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
14-15 EMV Shemwell HH Donkin RN Beale OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
15-16 Col DH Love EH Goulding N Thomson OGH Merrett
16-17 Col DH Love EH Goulding JW Roberts OGH Merrett
17-18 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts OGH Merrett JJ Waterer
18-19 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts LV Hind JJ Waterer
19-20 Col DH Love RC Middleton RJ Hall LV Hind JJ Waterer
20-21 Col DH Love RC Middleton JJ Waterer LV Hind
21-22 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
22-23 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
23-24 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
24-25 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
25-26 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
26-27 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
27-28 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
28-29 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
29-30 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
30-31 WH Allison AH Owen AC Ellison CW Whitehead GR Webb
31-32 CW Whitehead AH Owen AC Ellison GL Bolton EW Whitehead
32-33 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie GL Bolton NB Bland
33-34 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
34-35 FH Dargan AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
35-36 FH Dargan AV Robison GR Soutar DG Soutar SG Berthold
36-37 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DG Soutar SG Berthold
37-38 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DH Richardson WS Green
38-39 DG Soutar SAR Tuck SJ Law DH Richardson RN Crook
39-40 DG Soutar DK Robinson W Brown DH Richardson RN Crook
40-41 DG Soutar AV Robison R Kennington JR Greary G Hatten
41-42 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JR Geary G Hatten
42-43 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JL Jenkins WS Green
43-44 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck AE Fitzgerald WS Green
44-45 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald WS Green
45-46 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald G Kemp
46-47 JR Geary JS Gibbons NW Higham B McLoughlan FO Baker
47-48 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan FO Baker/G Terry
48-49 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan G Terry
49-50 JR Geary CK Paton WC Davidson EG Morgan G Terry
50-51 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell O Willis
51-52 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell G Terry
52-53 JR Geary WA Furey H Rodgers R Ferris G Terry
53-54 JR Geary SG Robinson H Rodgers A Fitzgerald B Terry
54-55 SG Robsinson R Woodley J Allen A Fitzgerald J McCabe
55-56 AE Fitzgerald NR Purcell DT Dunton G McConnell R Tighe



List of Executives 1956 - 1999
Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor
56-57 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G McConnell G Terry
57-58 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry J Wilson
58-59 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry C Anderson
59-60 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
60-61 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
61-62 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
62-63 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow

63-64 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow
64-65 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
65-66 S Tocchini W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
66-67 S Tocchini/ W Sutherland/P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow W Sutherland/ 

A Kwanton
67-68 NW Kelley G Kinging P Day K Day W Miles
68-69 J Sutherland G Kinging P Day K Day M Goodfellow
69-70 M Goodfellow G Kinging P Day C Barrow T Hanley
70-71 PA Day G Kinging D Ramsland R Higgins A Richardson

71-72 PA Day D Ramsland P Barnes M Simmons N Daniels
72-73 PA Day W Miles T Lane M Simmons N Daniels
73-74 PA Day W Miles/P Day T Lane M Simmons
74-75 PA Day M Turner D Kaye P McFadyen A McCarroll
75-76 PA Day M Turner/P Day A Shaw A McCarroll A McCarroll
76-77 PA Day T Glenn A Shaw A McCarroll M Turner
77-78 A McCarroll M Turner N Hunt C Fry T O’Donnell
78-79 A McCarroll R Buit N Hunt C Fry J Killick
79-80 A McCarroll M Pryke P Furnel/ 

M Gamlin
D Gordon J Killick

80-81 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin D Gordon J Killick
81-82 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker D Gordon
82-83 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker/J Killick D Gordon
83-84 A McCarroll G Evans P Nass B Burrows D Gordon
84-85 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan
85-86 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan/ 

D Gordon
86-87 A McCarroll C Coape-Smith/ 

R Fountain
G Evans P Duggan J Killick

87-88 A McCarroll R Fountain G Evans/ 
D Kaye

P Hull D Gordon

88-89 A McCarroll / B Walker T Miller D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
89-90 B Walker T O’Donnell D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
90-91 B Walker B Burrows D Kaye G O’Sullivan P Hull
91-92 B Walker/B Burrows B Burrows/I Donald A McCarroll G O’Sullivan / P 

Hull
92-93 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
93-94 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
94-95 B Burrows I Donald T Moore S Fry P Hull
95-96 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
96-97 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
97-98 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
98-99 D O’Shannassy J Killick/D O’Shannassy T Howard J Colwell  G O’Sullivan



Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor
99-00 S Grose T Prendergast T Howard J Colwell /G 

O’Sullivan
D O’Shannassy

00-01 I Byrne D O’Shannassy T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan
01-02 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan
02-03 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard H Matheson G O’Sullivan
03-04 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Latta G O’Sullivan
04-05 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson
05-06 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson
06-07 S A Fry KE Abraham G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott
07-08 SA Fry L Cooper G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott/  

KE Abraham
08-09 D O’Shannassy L Cooper G Cooper S Job KE Abraham
09-10 D O’Shannassy L Cooper G Cooper S Job KE Abraham
10-11 D O’Shannassy T Hare-Boyd G Cooper S Job F Traugott
11-12 G O’Sullivan L Cooper K Martin T Rankine F Traugott
12-13 G O’Sullivan L Cooper G Cooper T Rankine T Hare-Boyd
13-14 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper P Woolcott T Rankine R Chapman
14-15 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper G Cooper R Chapman F Traugott
15-16 F Traugott C Stewart K Ryder R Chapman J Greer
16-17 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano R Chapman K Jenkins
17-18 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins
18-19 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins
19-20 C Stewart C Hillier T Falzarano D Hillier Trae Hare-Boyd
20-21 C Stewart F Traugott T Falzarano D Hillier Trae Hare-Boyd

List of Executives 1999 - 2021

Thank you to all those who have contributed photographs 
used in this publication including:

David Sawyer, Mark Downey, Emma Hillier, Cath Hillier, Sarah Lally, Jon Colwell, 
Jodie Frazer, Claire Oxlade, Carter Capture, Darryl Bullock 

and other club members and Nipper parents.  
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